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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr Chen Hsien Min (resigned on 27 January 2011)

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (appointed on 27 January 2011)
Ms Chan Oi Chu

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

17th Floor, Fung House

19-20 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2367 9021
Fax: (852) 2311 3170

OPERATIONAL HEADQUARTER
3908 Hu Qing Ping Road

Zhao Xiang Town

Qingpu County

Shanghai, China

Telephone: (86) 21 3976 2468
Fax: (86) 21 5975 2698

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation

First Sino Bank

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Mega International Commercial Bank Co. Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

CORPORATE WEBSITES

http://www.daphneholdings.com
http://www.daphne.com.cn
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HMBEREERE

HIGHLIGHTS
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE B RIR
For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
2010 2009
ZE2E-2F _ZTTNF
Turnover (HK$' million) exm(AEET) 6,623.8 5,832.0
Gross profit (HK$' million) EN(BEBT) 3,800.8 3,207.1
Operating profit (HK$' million) (Note 1) wE RN (EEET) (M) 971.7 863.1
Profit attributable to equity holders of RATEREEANELET
the Company (HK$' million) (AB%T) 595.5 393.8
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREXRZF GEW) 36.36 24.05
Dividend per share (HK cents) TR S OB 12.0 8.0

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

FTEYHER
For the year ended
31 December

BEt=A=+-ALFE
2010 2009
—®-®F —TINF

Average inventory turnover (days) (Note 2)
Average debtors turnover (days) (Note 3)
Average creditors turnover (days) (Note 4)
Cash conversion cycle (days) (Note 5)
Capital expenditure (HK$' million) (Note 6)
Effective tax rate (%) (Note 7)

FHFEREEHR () (iE2) 128 156
R ER AR (B) (MF5E3) 11 11
YR BRAE A (A) (KE4) 69 77
Re@RAE(H) (H:E5) 70 90
BEARRZ (B8BT) (Mike) 281.3 142.7
EEME (%) (H5E7) 25.7 27.8

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2010 2009
—E-FF —EThF

Cash and bank balances (HK$' million) (Note 8) R4 K ER1T#r%8E (B BB L) (MI5E8) 2,059.7 1,625.8
Bank loans (HK$' million) RITEF(BEBT) 11.3 14.6
Convertible bonds (HK$' million) AlmRES (85T 556.6 515.6
Equity attributable to equity holders of ZAYNCIREESESE SN

the Company (HK$' million) EihER (B&EBT) 3,124.3 2,202.9
Current ratio (times) (Note 9) BEEREEE (E) (MFE9) 3.38 2.70
Net gearing ratio (%) (Note 10) F B ELEE(%) (FTFE10) Net cashFB & NetcashFH £

Notes: 3t -

1. Operating profit represented profit before fair value loss on warrants, finance 1. KERFIERRBREZZAFEEE - FBK
costs, share of profit of an associated company and income tax expense. - EE—EEE QR BT RAEHRAZ AR

2. The calculation of average inventory turnover (days) is based on the average 2. FHEFERAEH(R) DEREFVIRFRFEZTY
of opening and closing inventory balances divided by cost of sales and TR LA E KA TIAZ65H T H ©
multiplied by 365 days.

3. The calculation of average debtors turnover (days) is based on the average 3. FHERRRBER (B) DRFYVRFRE SRR
of opening and closing balances of trade receivables divided by turnover and BRI R BRRR DA 2 R SR UA365 B AT H -
multiplied by 365 days.

4. The calculation of average creditors turnover (days) is based on the average 4. FHEMERBES(B) DRFVRFLRE S EN
of opening and closing balances of trade payables divided by purchases and BRI 1 A BABR AR BB SR LA36S H At & -
multiplied by 365 days.

Daphne International Holdings Limited 4
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL
HIGHLIGHTS

10.

The calculation of cash conversion cycle (days) is based on average inventory
turnover (days) plus average debtors turnover (days) minus average creditors
turnover (days).

Capital expenditure comprises acquisition of land use rights and fixed assets
and cash expenditure on license rights.

Effective tax rate is calculated based on income tax expense including PRC
withholding tax divided by profit before income tax excluding fair value loss
on warrants.

Cash and bank balances comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank deposit
with maturity over three months and pledged bank deposit.

The calculation of current ratio (times) is based on the total current assets
divided by total current liabilities as at 31 December.

The calculation of net gearing ratio (%) is based on the total of bank loans
and convertible bonds divided by equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company as at 31 December.

Turnover Contribution Analysis
For the year ended 31 December

OEM business OEM business

Other brands
Hth @ k&

Other brands
H fth 5h b

Shoebox—— Shoebox—
iR =1
Daphne
ERR

@ Company-owned
Brand — Daphne
BEME — EXE

@® Company-owned
Brand — Shoebox

BAEmE — BiE

Distribution of points-of-sale of “Daphne” and “Shoebox” in Mainland
China as at 31 December

MBEREERE

5. REBRAB(A) HRFAFEREH(R) 0¥
BRAGREES (F) R T ERNRESH (B) &

>

6. BT BRBEELWERERBETEE UK
R EMENR SR -

7. BERBEDZAEHAX (BT BEARE 2R
) BRUABR TS BB AR (T R ERBREEATE
BER)FHE-

8. ReRBROTHBECLEREMALEEY  FH
BB=EAZRITERREERBITER -

9. BERBLE (B DRERT-—A=1+—HZR
PDEECERUARD B ERESE -

10. FRELER)IRENT A=+ —HZ®RTT
ERRASRRES 2 EERAR DRSS A
JEME T &

ERBFEMIN

HET-_A=+—HILFE

Daphne

EIRE

Other brands
H b m hg

OEM Business
RERBREER

RTZA=+—BzlEXE RITEE] RSP
BARERHERBAE

City Tier
357 4% Bl
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 Tier 5 Tier 6 Total
—®RET ZH/ET ZERT NARET ESET  ANEETW a5t
2010 Z=ZF—ZF Daphne EXIE 398 704 530 677 587 893 3,789
Shoebox EEHE 142 241 226 221 206 77 1,113
540 945 756 898 793 970 4,902
2009 Z—ZFZTNF Daphne EXIe 356 616 442 613 531 749 3,307
Shoebox #:1@ 110 171 149 173 160 50 813
466 787 591 786 691 799 4,120
5 Annual Report 2010
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

RESULTS

With the Mainland China economy continuing to grow with vigor,
consumption sentiment has also kept strengthening. This trend, which
braced healthy development of the retail sector in the past year, is expected
to continue to present opportunities to retailers. Boasting success in
tapping the trend, | am pleased to present the annual results of Daphne
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

BRAND BUSINESS CONTINUES TO CONSOLIDATE

Our own brands, “Daphne” and “Shoebox”, continued to account for a
vast percentage of our sales revenue — 86% together. “Daphne” brought
in approximately 66% of our total revenue and “Shoebox”, which targets
the mass market and has been gaining growth momentum, contributed
nearly 20% of the total sales revenue for the year under review.

“Daphne”, targeting the medium-price female footwear market, continued
to deliver existing and fashionable products at affordable price. To support
its continuous growth, we expanded its sales network across Mainland
China, with most of the points-of-sale opened towards the second half of
the year as labour-related pressures eased.

“Shoebox”, made significant progress during 2010. It managed to
achieve sales growth and an operating margin that exceeded our
expectations. To further enhance the growing awareness of the brand
among mass consumers, we strategically set up “Shoebox” points-of-
sale in the neighbourhood where Daphne is already present This approach
accommodated us to meet our expansion and profitability target for the

year.

Committed to catering to a vast majority of budgets and tastes, the Group
acquired a majority equity interest in Full Pearl International Limited (“Full
Pearl”) in January 2010 to more effectively serve the mid-to-high-end
footwear market. After the acquisition, we integrated the upscale business
including its approximately 200 points-of-sale for various mid-to high-end
brands with the rest of our operations.

Apart from strengthening our core brand business, the Group has also
devoted much effort to bolstering its capabilities on all fronts including
manufacturing business. Despite the labour shortages in southern China,
our factory operations were unimpeded and even achieved a modest
turnover growth versus the previous year. We constantly keep a close eye
on our production planning as well as capacity optimisation.

Daphne International Holdings Limited 6
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BUILDING A WELL-ROUNDED OPERATION

In the year ahead, the Group will continue to build a well-rounded business
operation. We will keep strengthening the presence of “Daphne” and
"Shoebox” in Mainland China, continue the integration of Full Pearl and
introduce new brands covering footwear and fashion products for mid-
to high-end consumers. We aim to offer a complete product portfolio that
pleases women from all walks of life and income strata. Carefully tailored
marketing campaigns will be mounted aiming at elevating brand awareness
and cementing customer loyalty. Meanwhile, to assure steady supply of
products, we will continue to enhance supply chain and look for new
suppliers throughout Mainland China. We are optimistic that these efforts
will enhance the prominence of our brands and allow us to deliver favorable
returns to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I'would like to extend my deep appreciation to all business partners, our
employees, management team and shareholders for their commitment and
trust bestowed on Daphne International Holdings Limited.

Chen Ying-Chieh
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Brand Business

THBF®RRS N

£ CI) -
aa 1 %

Number of points-of-sale
as at 31 December

RT-ZA=t-—RZHEEHNHE

2010 2009 Change

—2-85 —TTh& 21t

Daphne (Mainland China) [Exfe | (PEIARREE) 3,789 3,307 +482
Shoebox [&1E ] 1,113 813 +300
Others H 297 105 +192
Total &t 5,199 4,225 +974

Turnover for the year
ended 31 December (HK$'million)
BE+t-A=1t—HLEEZEXBE(5EER)

2010 2009 Change

—E—ZTF —TTNF 21t

Daphne (Mainland China) [y ] (PR AR 4,400.2 4,063.0 +8%
Shoebox [EEHE 1,296.4 954.7 +36%
Others i 430.3 278.6 +54%
Total &&F 6,126.9 5,296.3 +16%

“Daphne” [ZE XY

Spurred by retail market growth in Mainland China, the Group’s core own
brand “Daphne” continued to play the market leader and contributed 66 %
(2009: 70%) of Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The renowned “Daphne” brand enjoyed strengthened market presence in
Mainland China with more points-of-sale established in 2010, in particular,
during the second half of the year when stock-out problem caused by
temporary factory labour shortage was resolved. As at the end of 2010,
“Daphne” had 1,986 (2009: 1,848) directly-managed stores, 819 (2009:
716) directly-managed counters and 984 (2009: 743) franchised outlets.

In 2010, “Daphne” business delivered growth in both turnover and
gross profit margin. Despite the keen market competitions, high inflation
and increasing material costs, “Daphne” successfully managed the cost
pressure by increasing the products’ average selling price (“ASP”). The
higher ASP could also differentiate “Daphne” brand from other brands
(e.g. “Shoebox") operated by the Group. Moreover, the Group launched
a “Brand Rejuvenation” campaign for “Daphne” in the second half of the
year as to maintain its competitive strength. To elevate the market position
of the brand, the Group introduced an enhanced product portfolio with
better quality, which has earned the appreciation of customers.

Daphne International Holdings Limited 8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

However, as a result of rising expenses, operating profit margin of
“Daphne” was under pressure. During the year, the Group recorded higher

rental and personnel expenses.

“Shoebox”

“Shoebox" business performance exceeded management’s expectation in
2010. Same store sales maintained double-digit growth. Turnover gross
profit and operating profit all recorded satisfactory growth, being 36% and
44% and 72%, respectively, compared to last year. Moreover, with ASP
climbing up, its gross margin rose by approximately 3.2 percentage points.
Such solid performances can be attributed to greater recognition of the
brand in the mass market, which is “Shoebox”’s target segment. Strong
economic growth bolstering household income and consumption sentiment
are also significant factors contributing to growth of the business.

As at 31 December 2010, “Shoebox” had 1,113 (2009: 813) directly-
managed stores located in different city tiers of Mainland China.

Together with “Daphne”, “Shoebox” penetrated new business zones,

in addition to entering locations where “Daphne” already has strong

presence.

Other brands

Other brands consist of self-owned brands and licensed brands operated in
Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong, contributed to approximately 6%
(2009: 5%) of the Group's turnover for the year.

Upon the acquisition of Full Pearl in January 2010, the Group's brand
portfolio was enriched to have different brands targeting various segments
of customers.

In the second half of the year, the newly acquired Full Pearl’s business was
re-organised to better integrate with the existing business of the Group
to achieve maximum synergies and operational efficiency. The integration
has been undergoing since the last quarter of 2010 and it is expected to
generate operational benefits in the long-term.

Following the decision to withdraw from the sportswear business in 2009,
the Group fully terminated the business in the first half of 2010.

Manufacturing Business

The Group's manufacturing business maintained stable development for
the year under review. The Group is prudent in managing its manufacturing
business amid strong competition, it continuously aims to maintain stable
operating margin by managing its cost structure and operation efficiently.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Performance
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group's turnover increased by

14% to HK$6,623.8 million (2009: HK$5,832.0 million) while operating
profit (being profit before fair value loss on warrants, finance costs, share of
profit of an associated company and income tax expense) increased by 13%
to HK$971.7 million (2009: HK$863.1 million). Recognising the fair value
loss on warrants of HK$77.3 million (2009: HK$203.5 million) in 2010,
profit attributable to shareholders was HK$595.5 million (2009: HK$393.8
million), increased by 51%. Basic earnings per share was HK36.36 cents
(2009: HK24.05 cents). The Board recommended payment of a final
dividend of HK6.0 cents (2009: HK5.0 cents) per share for the year ended
31 December 2010. Including interim dividend of HK6.0 cents (2009: HK3.0
cents) per share, total dividend per share for 2010 is HK12.0 cents (2009:
HK8.0 cents), representing an increase of 50% compared to last year. Total
dividend payout is 29% (2009: 22 %), based on EPS excluding fair value loss

on warrants.

The business performance of individual segments for the year ended 31
December is summarised as follows:

nlp

3

EEENWE DN

Bt %% (5] R
ES £ 3]
@i:%f?fﬁr* A=+—BLFE &%
EETEIENI14%%6,623.858B L (=TT
hi :5,832.08 8B T)  MEERF (KRR
iz A EERE  BEAAR - EE—H
e RRBIRAEHHAZAATN) EMN13%E
M TEEATL (ZZTNF :863.188EL) °
RIT—ZFARREELT77IFESE T (=
TENEF 20358 &ET) 2 AV EERER
BREREEBFRE5955BEET(ZEThEF:
393.8EEE L)  WM51% - AEBERER
AF| 536.36781L (:%;ﬁni 124.05%1l) - #
FEERREHE_T—ZTF+-A=1+—H
IEFER RIS le@%ﬂh(—v ZHE 5.0

B - ERFHRENREER6.0BI(=ZF
THE 3.081) 2FRBAFEERI2.05
il (ZZEAE : .0Bl) BWEF EF50% °

KB R (RETRERRIEZE 2 A EBEEIS
HEREATF) £29% (ZZEZNF : 22%) °

ENBRBET A=+ -HBILEFENEBKBER
BENWT

Manufacturing

Brand business Business
R BEXY
HKS' million Daphne Shoebox Others
BEBTL EXIR &1 Hit
For the year ended 31 December
HEtZ-A=1+-BLFE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“B-FFf -“TINE ZB-BF —TTNF ZB-FF —ITNFE ZB-BF -—TINF
Revenue from external ~ $IHNRFMzE
customers 4,350.1 4,059.1 1,296.4 954.7 409.7 277.6 567.6 540.7
Inter-segment revenue A HE NG 50.0 39 - - 20.7 1.0 594.5 5733
Total segment revenue DB 4,400.1 4,063.0 1,296.4 954.7 430.3 2786 1,162.1 1,114.0
Segment gross profit AEE 2,646.5 24105 751.2 521.9 224.1 923 180.0 1743
Segment operating et
profit/(loss) B/ (BR) 830.6 780.2 175.5 102.3 (7.3) (66.6) 51.6 56.5

Daphne International Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Group has a healthy
net cash position. Cash and bank balances, comprised of cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits with maturity over three months, were
HK$2,059.7 million (2009: HK$1,625.8 million). The net increase of
HK$433.9 million (2009: HK$1,477.8 million) is analysed as follows:

EEE

ollp

3

e &l

R-E—ZTF+_A=Z+—HE-ZTTAF+=
A=+—8 A&EEHBRIFRESMA - ]
S RIBTES (RERERRSEEY - T3
iBE =8 A ZRITFHR) A2,059.78EH L (=
TTNF 1 1,625.8FE B L) o FIINA433.9
BEBL(ZTTNE 1 1,477.8EEE L) O
(N
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Net cash generated from operating activities & & EEELNIR S FRE 892.3 1,350.0
Capital expenditure =N (281.3) (142.7)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets & EEEEMSHIE 4.1 5.1
Net dividend paid [RENE SR (183.8) (101.5)
Net bank loans repaid FRITEREER (34.0) (256.3)
Net cash flow from (acquisition)/disposal of (W) HEMB AR REMIEE
subsidiaries and other investment ZEFEBRER (32.3) 35
Net proceeds from issue of convertible BT AR ESF M RREFE ST
bonds and warrants - 609.7
Net interest received/(paid) B () R B FEE 16.5 (7.2)
Others =i - 0.1
Effect of exchange rate changes HNE R R EH) 2 B 52.4 17.1
433.9 1,477.8

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
amounting to HK$214.9 million (2009: HK$188.4 million) and current ratio
(being current assets divided by current liabilities) was 3.38 (2009: 2.70).
The Group has sufficient resources currently to support expansion and
development of business in the future.

To maximise the return on idle liquid resources, during the year ended
31 December 2010, the Group placed a number of principal-guaranteed
structured deposits with registered banks in Mainland China. The interest
income earned for the year was HK$37.1 million, significantly higher than
that of last year of HK$6.6 million.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s net gearing, calculated on the basis
of net debt (being total bank loans and convertible bonds less total cash
and bank balances) over shareholders’ equity, was in a net cash (2009: net
cash) position. All bank loans were at floating rates during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group did not engage in any foreign exchange derivatives during the
year (2009: nil). Management closely monitors the market situation and
may consider tools to manage foreign exchange risk whenever necessary.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s short-term bank loan of HK$11.3
million was all unsecured. As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s short-term
bank loan of HK$14.6 million was secured by an available-for-sale financial
asset with nil carrying value and a deposit of HK$2.9 million was pledged
for banking facilities.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group incurred a capital expenditure of HK$281.3
million (2009: HK$142.7 million) mainly for retail network expansion and
renovation, purchase and construction of regional warehouses and offices,

etc.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

In January 2010, the Group acquired 59.96% equity interest in Full Pearl
at a consideration of HK$195.0 million, including cash paid of HK$180.0
million and a payable bearing interest of 5% per annum of HK$15.0 million.
License rights and trademarks of HK$108.3 million and goodwill of HK$0.9
million were recognised upon completion of the transaction.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had over 23,000 (2009: 21,000)
employees in Mainland China, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Korea. Employee
and directors’ expenditure for the year, including share-based payment
expense of HK$58.6 million (2009: nil), amounted to HK$836.6
million (2009: HK$607.4 million). The Group values human resources
and recognises the importance of retaining high calibre employees.
Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to market
terms and the qualifications of individual employees. In addition, share
options and discretionary bonuses are granted to eligible employees based
on the performance of the Group and the individual employee. The Group
also provides mandatory provident fund schemes, medical insurance

schemes, staff purchase discounts and training programmes to employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The Mainland China economy is expected to experience GDP growth
of approximately 9% in 2011. On top of that, salaries are on the rise
continuously, which means the middle-class population is growing. These
developments will benefit businesses targeting the low- to mid-end market
segment. The gradual movement of industrial activities from the east
coast to central and western parts of the country will also provide fresh
opportunities for businesses with operations in the latter regions.

The Group will continue to exploit the rising purchasing power of
consumers in Mainland China. It will pursue a multi-brand strategy and
introduce products across the price spectrum to match the spending
preferences of consumers. To better serve the mass market, the Group will
strengthen and expand the existing markets of its core brand business.
For “Daphne”, the Group will continue the brand rejuvenation program
to refresh consumers’ perception. Having been in the market for two

"

decades, "Daphne”’s illustrious history will be a strong platform for it to
raise brand status to new heights. While capitalising on the revitalisation
campaign, more products of a greater price range will be introduced to
attract higher customer traffic and help the Group maintain stable same
store sales growth in coming years. Furthermore, the Group will continue
to open sales points in lower tier cities, which will bring more customers to
the rejuvenated “Daphne” brand. For the “Shoebox” label, the Group will
develop strategies to reinforce the brand’s family-oriented philosophy. It
will for the first time use marketing activities designed to attract national
attention and build brand awareness.

Regarding the mid- to high-end ladies footwear segment served by multi
brands brought in by Full Pearl, the Group will seek to increase consumer
recognition of the brands in first- and second-tier cities. In addition to
footwear segment, the Group will also develop new business opportunities
to satisfy the growing demand of the mid-to-high income segment in
Mainland China.

Network expansion will also be a focus of the Group to consolidate existing
businesses. The Group plans to open approximately 800 points-of-sale,
including 600 directly-managed and 200 franchised outlets, for its core
owned brand business in 2011.

To support expansion of business geographically, the Group will secure new
suppliers to diversify and stabilise supply of products. Efforts to optimise
the supply chain will also involve enhancing core processes including
procurement, manufacturing, inventory control, warehousing and logistics,
and adoption of information technologies.

Facing opportunities ahead, the Group is prepared and ready to greet and

tackle related competitive and operational challenges. We are confident
that we can report satisfactory performance in coming years.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh, aged 41, is the chairman and was appointed as

the chief executive officer of the Group on 27 January 2011. Mr Chen is
responsible for the overall corporate and business strategic planning of
the Group. Mr Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in International Trade
Business from the University of Zhengyou. He has been working with the
Group since 1992. Mr Chen is a nephew of Mr Chen Hsien Min and a cousin
of Mr Chang Chih-Kai and Mr Chang Chih-Chiao.

Mr Chang Chih-Kai, aged 30, has studied a bachelor’s degree of Art
in Auckland University after graduated from Pakuranga College in New
Zealand. He joined the Company since 2003 with focus on product
development and general management. Mr Chang is the brother of Mr
Chang Chih-Chiao, a cousin of Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and a nephew of Mr
Chen Hsien Min.

Mr Chang Chih-Chiao, aged 28, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 12 June 2009. Mr Chang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in visual communication from the Northumbria University in the United
Kingdom. Mr Chang joined the Group in 2007 and is currently primarily
responsible for specialised business projects and negotiations. Mr Chang is
the brother of Mr Chang Chih-Kai, a cousin of Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and a
nephew of Mr Chen Hsien Min.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Chen Hsien Min, aged 60, is currently the vice-chairman and one of
the founders of the Group. Mr Chen was re-designated as a non-executive
director on 27 January 2011. Mr Chen has a bachelor’s degree in Land
Economics from the National Cheng Chi University of Taiwan. Mr Chen
joined the Group since 1988 and has over 30 years of experience in the
footwear industry. Mr Chen is an uncle of Mr Chen Ying-Chieh, Mr Chang
Chih-Kai and Mr Chang Chih-Chiao.

Ms Ma Xuezheng, aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 12 June 2009. Ms Ma has over 30 years of experience in
financial and executive management. She graduated from Capital Normal
University in 1976. Ms Ma is currently the chairman of a private equity firm
and a non-executive director of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)

Limited and Lenovo Group Limited.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming, aged 71, is a partner of an accounting firm in Taiwan.
He is @ member of Taiwan Provincial CPA Association and has over 40 years
of experience in auditing and accounting. Mr Hsiao holds a master’s degree
in the National Changhua University of Education and he is a director of
Tera Autotech Corporation Inc. (“TAC”) and an independent director of
Formosa Optical Technology Co. Ltd. (“"FOTCL"). Both TAC and FOTCL
are traded over-the-counter in Taiwan. Mr Hsiao was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai, aged 57, is a director of six technology companies
in Taiwan. He has been active in the technology field for over 10 years.
Mr Huang was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in 2001.

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng, aged 60, is a director of a manufacturing and
distribution company in China. Mr Kuo is a former senator of the Legislative
House in Taiwan. He has been serving the community in Taiwan as a
representative for over 10 years. Mr Kuo holds an MBA degree from the
University of Hawaii. Mr Kuo was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2001.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr Kim Jin-Goon, aged 43, was appointed as an alternate director to Ms
Ma Xuezheng in September 2009. Mr Kim has over 10 years of experience
in management and operational directorship. He is currently the director
of operations of TPG Capital Limited, an affiliate of Premier China Limited
(“Premier China”) which has substantial interests in the shares, convertible
bonds and warrants of the Company, and an executive director and the
chief executive officer of Guanghui Automobile Services Co., Ltd.. Mr Kim
has also been designated by Premier China as its observer on the Board.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Xin Jia Hua, aged 57, is the vice general manager of the Group. Mr Xin
is responsible for the sales and distribution of brand business of the Group.
Mr Xin joined the Group since 1994 and he has over 30 years of experience
in footwear manufacturing and distribution business.

Mr Hu Huan Xin, aged 42, is the chief operation officer of the Group.
Mr Hu is responsible for the Group’s supply chain management including
production planning and operation. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Economics & International Tade from Zhongshan University. Mr Hu has
over 15 years of experience in operations & supply chain management in
multinational companies and he joined the Group in January 2010.

Mr Li Tao, aged 45, is the chief development officer and is responsible for
the planning and management of distribution network of the Group. Mr
Li holds a bachelor’s degree in Industrial Economics & Management from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. Prior to joining the Group in
December 2010, Mr Li worked in multinational companies and accumulated
over 20 years of experience in brand and franchise management.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Lu Ying, Louisa, aged 43, is the chief marketing officer of the Group
and she is responsible for marketing and strategic brand planning and
management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in April 2010, Ms
Lu has taken senior marketing management role in various multinational
companies and she holds a master's degree in Organic Chemistry from
Shanghai University of Science and Technology.

Ms Chao Huei Chuan, aged 43, is a vice general manager of the Group.
Ms Chao is responsible for administering and supporting the office of
Chairman and CEO as well as overseeing the risk management of the
Group. Ms Chao was graduated from the Overseas Chinese Institute of
Technology with major in International Trade. She joined the Group since
1994 and she has nearly 20 years of experience in finance, accounting and
management.

Ms Chou Wan Ching, aged 52, is the chief human resources officer who
joined the Group in January 2011. Ms Chou is responsible for the overall
corporate human resources management and office administration of the
Group. Ms Chou holds an MBA degree from Ottawa University, Kansas
and a bachelor’s degree from National Taiwan University; she spent more
than 20 years working with different industries focused in human resources
management.

Mr Lin Che Li, Jerry, aged 43, is the chief financial officer of the Group.
Mr Lin joined the Group in January 2010 and is responsible for the overall
corporate and financial planning of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr Lin spent almost 20 years with a major US automotive company,
including 15 years in its financial staff with headquarters and operating
assignments in New York, Singapore, Taipei, Seoul and Shanghai. Mr Lin
holds an MBA degree from Columbia University and a bachelor’s degree in
Electrical Engineering from the University of Rochester, in New York, USA.

Mr Cheung Chun Hay, aged 37, is the assistant general manager of the
Company. He is responsible for the Group’s overall financial management
and strategic planning for the Group. Mr Cheung holds a bachelor’s
degree from the City University of Hong Kong and also qualified as a
certified public accountant with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr Cheung had worked for
an international accounting firm, listed and private companies in Hong
Kong. He has extensive experience in the fields of auditing, accounting and
finance.

Ms Chan Oi Chu, aged 34, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Group. Ms Chan has over 10 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and company secretarial in
Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group in 2004, Ms Chan worked in a listed
company in Hong Kong and she also has over 5 years of experience in an
international accounting firm. She holds a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Financial Accounting) from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. To enhance the overall management quality of the Company,
the Board has adopted corporate governance practices with special
emphasis on an effective Board for leadership and control, sound business
ethics and integrity in all business activities, transparency and accountability
to shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
During the year, the Company has adopted and complied with code

provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The change in directorship on 27 January 2011 constituted deviations
of the Company’s corporate governance from Codes A.2.1 and A.4.1 of
the Code. Details are stated under “Chairman and Chief Executive” and
" Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors” on pages 18 and 19

respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted stringent procedures governing directors’
securities transactions in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All directors and chief executives of
the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) currently consists of the following
directors:

Date of first becoming director

Executive Directors

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 21 May 1996
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 27 January 2011)

Mr Chang Chih-Chiao 12 June 2009

Mr Chang Chih-Kai
Non-executive Directors

22 November 2004

Mr Chen Hsien Min (Vice-chairman) 11 April 1995
(re-designated as Non-executive Director and Vice-chairman)
on 27 January 2011)
Ms Ma Xuezheng 12 June 2009
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming 10 September 2004
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai 31 July 2001
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng 1 July 2001

Alternate Director

Mr Kim Jin-Goon (Alternate Director to Ms Ma Xuezheng) 1 September 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The executive directors draw on a rich and diverse experience from the
footwear business while the non-executive director and the independent
non-executive directors possess appropriate professional qualifications and
management expertise. Each independent non-executive director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company,
and the Company considers these directors to be independent pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The names, brief biography of the directors
and relationship among them are set out on page 14 to 16 under Biography
of Directors and Senior Management.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate overall strategy
of the Group, monitor its financial performance and maintain effective
oversight over the management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
directors prior to a regular Board meeting, and each director may request
inclusion of matters in the agenda for Board meetings. A detailed agenda,
minutes of the previous meeting and accompanying board papers are
sent to directors before the meeting to facilitate informed discussion and

decision-making.

Every board member is entitled to have access to board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the company
secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional advice if
necessary. The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
the procedures are followed and that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with.

During the year, six full board meetings were held and the attendance of
each director is set out on page 23.

The Board has established three committees, the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, to assist it in overseeing
the Group’s affairs. Each committee has defined terms of reference setting
out its duties, powers and functions and are posted on the Company’s
website. The committees report regularly to the Board and make
recommendations on matters where appropriate. The Board, in addition to
its overall supervisory role, retains specific responsibilities such as approving
specific senior appointments, approving financial accounts, recommending
dividend payments, approving policies relating to the Board’s compliance,
etc.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
During the year ended 31 December 2010, Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and

Mr Chen Hsien Min were the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company respectively. On 27 January 2011, Mr Chen Hsien Min was re-
designated as a non-executive director, appointed as Vice-chairman and
ceased to be Managing Director of the Company. Mr Chen Ying-Chieh was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on the same date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. Since the re-designation of directorship stated
above, the Group does not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and Mr Chen Ying-Chieh holds both positions. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
in the development and execution of long-term business strategies.
Going forward, the Group will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers segregating the roles when it thinks
appropriate.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and are eligible for re-election. Every director newly appointed by
the Board is subject to election at the first general meeting after his/her
appointment.

Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Following the re-designation of directorship stated above, Mr Chen Hsien
Min acted as a non-executive director who was not appointed for a specific
term but is subject to retirement by rotation and is eligible for re-election.
The Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director of the Company, on the first occasion of his
appointment, shall receive a tailored induction on the responsibilities and
on-going obligations to be observed by a director. In addition, the senior
management and the company secretary will conduct briefing if necessary
to ensure that the directors have a proper understanding of the operations
and business of the Group and that they are aware of their responsibilities
under the laws and applicable regulations.

The functions of non-executive directors, as per the terms of reference of

the Board, have included the functions as specified in Code Provisions A.5.2
(a) to (d) of the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company has been established since
April 2005 and currently consists of the following directors:

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai Independent Non-executive Director
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng Independent Non-executive Director
Ms Ma Xuezheng Non-executive Director

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh Executive Director

Major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

. To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes

e To identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individual nominated for directorships

e To access the independence of independent non-executive directors

e  To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the
year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held and the attendance of
each member is set out on page 23. At the meeting held during the year,
the independence of independent non-executive directors was considered
and the re-appointment of retiring directors which were approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting was recommended.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established since
April 2005 and currently consists of the following directors:

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng Independent Non-executive Director
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Chen Hsien Min Non-executive Director (re-designated from

executive director on 27 January 2011)
Ms Ma Xuezheng Non-executive Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

e  To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration

e To have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
directors. The Remuneration Committee should consider factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the group and desirability of performance-based remuneration

e Toreview and approve performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the board from time to

time

e To review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company

e Toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that such
arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable
and appropriate

e To ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the
year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held and the attendance
of each member is set out on page 23. At the meeting held during the year,
the overall pay levels in Hong Kong, China and Taiwan where the Group
has establishments were reviewed and considered. The remuneration of
directors is pre-determined and is based on their respective contractual
terms of appointment, if any, and as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the emoluments paid/payable to individual director
of the Company are set out in Note 14 to the accounts.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of the following

directors:

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming

(Chairman of the Committee)
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

Ms Ma Xuezheng

Non-executive Director

Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

To consider the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the external auditors, including both audit and non-
audit services, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of the
external auditors of the Group

To assess the independence of external auditors and discuss with the
external auditors the nature and scope of the audit

To review interim and annual accounts before submission to the Board

To review the financial controls, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group and make recommendations to the
Board

To review the external auditors’ management letter and material
queries raised by the auditors to management in respect of accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s

response

At the meetings held during the year, the Audit Committee had performed
the following work:

To review the annual accounts and interim accounts

To review external auditors’ audit plan, terms of engagement and
recommend the fees for the Board's approval

To review the management letters and reports issued by the external
auditors

To review the effectiveness of internal control and financial control
systems

To consider and review material related party transactions and
connected transactions, if any
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year,
three Audit Committee meetings were held and the executive directors,
the management and the external auditors attended to provide necessary
information. The attendance of each member to the meetings is set out

below.

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEES' MEETINGS

The attendance rates of individual members in Board and Board
Committees’ meetings held in 2010 are detailed as follows:
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Number of meetings attended/held in 2010

ZE-BEHE/ETEERE

Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit  Attendance
Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee rate
Exg HMzZEE® REEEE ENZEE HEx
Executive directors HITEE
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (Chairman) BRENEE(FE) 6/6 1/1 100%
Mr Chang Chih-Kai RESILAE 6/6 100%
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao REEEE 6/6 100%
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr Chen Hsien Min (re-designated from ~ BERELE (R -F——4
executive director on 27 January 2011) —AZ+tHAHATEERE) 66 11 100%
Ms Ma Xuezheng 5ELt 6/6 n n 3/3 100%
Independent non-executive directors BUHHNTEF
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming RERTE 6/6 n n 33 100%
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BRZE2TE)
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai EIEH % & 6/6 11 11 33 100%
(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (1BEZEEFE)
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng (Chairman of PERREE 6/6 1/1 1/1 33 100%
Remuneration Committee) (FHWEEBLRE)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard the Company’s assets. The Board and the Audit
Committee periodically reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group which covered financial, operational, compliance
and risk management functions. The Board also appoints from time to
time external professional to review the Group’s major internal control
procedures and report findings and areas for improvements to the Board
Committees. The Board and the Audit Committee consider that the key
aspects of the Group’s internal control systems are reasonably addressed
and the Group has complied with the Code Provisions in general.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts
of each financial period, which give a true and fair of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts, the directors adopt applicable accounting policies and apply
consistently. The directors also make prudent and reasonable judgements
and to ensure the accounts are on-going concern basis.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy, monitoring and
controlling the performance of the Group whilst managing the Group’s
business is the responsibility of the management.

While the Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions as to the powers
of management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company.

Matters reserved to be approved by the Board include:

e Appointment of directors and senior executives

o Business plans and establishment of new markets

o Proposal for selection of external auditors

e  Financial accounts and budgets

o Substantial capital investments and commitments

o Formation of policies and codes as required by regulatory bodies

. Formation of board committees

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the provision of audit and non-audit services
were HK$4,150,000 and HK$27,000 respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'’
RIGHTS

The board recognises the importance of good communication with all
shareholders and potential investors. Communication with shareholders,
investors and analysts are maintained through the followings:

o Delivery of interim and annual reports to all shareholders through
either printed or electronic forms

. Publication of announcements on the interim and annual results on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, and issue of
other announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with

the continuing disclosure obligations under Listing Rules

o Holding of annual and special general meetings to provide a channel
for the Chairman of the Board and the Board Committees to answer
shareholders’ questions as well as seeking approval from shareholders
for relevant business and capital transactions. At the annual general
meetings, a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in

respect of each separate issue including the re-election of directors

o Establishing dedicated divisions and personnel for liaison with
investors and analysts by answering their questions

o Arranging on-site visits to the company’s establishments to enhance
their timely understanding of the situations and latest development of
the Company's business operations

o Making available information on the Company’s website, including
description of the Company and its business, the Board and corporate
governance, results of the Company, financial highlights and
promotional materials, etc.

o Actively communicating with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and individual meetings with
institutional investors upon the announcements of the interim
and annual results and making decisions on material investments.
The Company also participates in a range of investor activities and

communicates on one-on-one basis with its investors regularly

The procedures of shareholders’ voting by poll at the annual general
meetings were incorporated in the circular despatched together with the
annual report to shareholders. The Company is responsible for ensuring the
votes are properly counted and recorded.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit their report together with the audited accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the accounts. The Group
is principally engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of footwear,
apparel and accessories mainly in China.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by business and geographical
segments is set out in Note 5 to the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated profit
and loss account on page 38.

The board of directors has declared an interim dividend of HK6.0 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$98,274,000, which was paid on 28 September
2010.

The board of directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$98,274,000 in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2010.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Laws (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, as at 31
December 2010 amounted to HK$539,747,000

The share premium of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the shareholders provided that immediately following the
distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 30 to the accounts.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year

amounted to HK$2,391,000 (2009: HK$4,181,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the

accounts.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 108.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company'’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 27 January 2011)

Mr Chen Hsien Min (Managing Director)
(re-designated as Non-executive director and Vice-chairman
on 27 January 2011)

Mr Chang Chih-Kai

Mr Chang Chih-Chiao

Non-executive directors

Mr Chen Hsien Min (Vice-chairman)
(appointed on 27 January 2011)

Ms Ma Xuezheng

Independent non-executive directors
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng

Alternate director
Mr Kim Jin-Goon (Alternate Director to Ms Ma Xuezheng)

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr Chen Hsien Min, Mr Chang Chih-Kai and Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The term of directorship of all the independent non-executive directors
is one year and the term will continue for a successive period of one year
unless terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice to
the other party.

All the independent non-executive directors have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and based on
such confirmation, the Company is of the opinion that the independence
status of the independent non-executive directors remains intact as at 31
December 2010.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biography of directors and senior management are set out on pages
14 to16.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of each director in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as

follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EEERE

RAEARBDROREERD 2HFE

Number of shares

RGEE
Percentage of
issued share
Corporate Underlying capital of
interest interest Total the Company
EARAF
21T
AR kR BEr REBDL
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh PREN A& 147,738,920 16,000,000 163,738,920 10.00
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(MF3ET) (M5E2)
Mr Chen Hsien Min fRER A& - 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.73
(Note 2)
(F5E2)
Mr Chang Chih-Kai REE L - 6,500,000 6,500,000 0.40
(Note 2)
(PfF5E2)
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao REBRLAE - 5,500,000 5,500,000 0.33
(Note 2)
(B 3E2)
Notes: B aE -

1. Mr Chen Ying-Chieh has beneficial interest in 147,738,920 shares in the Company
through Pushkin Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, in which Mr Chen Ying-Chieh holds one-third of the equity interest.

2. These interests represented the interests in underlying shares of the Company in
respect of share options granted to the directors on 27 January 2010.

In addition to the above, Mr Chen Hsien Min, the Vice-chairman and
non-executive director of the Company, also holds non-voting deferred
shares and nominee shares of certain subsidiaries solely for the purpose of
ensuring that the relevant subsidiaries have more than one member.

Save as disclosed above and the section “Share option scheme”, as at 31
December 2010, none of the directors or chief executive, nor any of their
associates (including their spouses and children under 18 years of age), had
any interests in or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe
for shares of the Company and its associated corporations required to be
disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of
the Company (including their spouses and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted and amended its share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) on 29 May 2003 and 7 December 2009
respectively to provide incentives to the employees, including any
executive and non-executive directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to recruit
high-calibre employees and attract and retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the directors
may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants including employees,
executive and non-executive directors, officers, agents or consultants of the
Group to take up options to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to
the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on 17 June
2008, the date of approval from shareholders of the Company after the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme on 29 May 2003; or (ii) 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. No share options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme if this will result in such
limit exceeded unless another shareholders’ approval is obtained. As at
the date of this annual report, the number of shares available for issue,
save for those granted but yet to be exercised, under the Share Option
Scheme is 93,664,238, representing 5.7% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue. The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of share options (including both exercised
and outstanding share options) granted in any 12-month period to each
participant must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The exercise price must be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of movements of the share options granted under the Share Option

Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2010 were as follows:

EEERE

RBE-Z-SFF+_A=+—HLEFE R
BEEREFIRLZEREZESHBOT

Exercise Granted Lapsed Outstanding at Exercisable
Date of grant price during theyear ~ during the year 31 December 2010 period
R-B-%2fF
tZA=t-8
RHBH ke ERiRH EREX WA iid
HKS
BT
Executive directors
HITEF
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh 27 January 2010 6.19 16,000,000 - 16,000,000 27 January 2011 to
REAEE ZE-RE-ACfA (Note 1) 26 January 2020
(fir3E1) ZE—E-fACt4HE
ZECEE-ACTRA
(Note 3)
(Mi£3)
Mr Chang Chih-Kai 27 January 2010 6.19 6,500,000 - 6,500,000 27 January 2011 to
RENEE ZE-RE-ACf4A (Note 1) 26 January 2020
(Fir3E1) ZZ-—-f-f-t++tAZ
ZRCRE-RITRE
(Note 3)
i)
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao 27 January 2010 6.19 5,500,000 - 5,500,000 27 January 2011 to
REELE ZE-FE-A-tkA (Note 1) 26 January 2020
(Fir3E1) Z3-—F-fZt+tAZE
“RCRE-ATA
(Note 3)
(FizE3)
Mr Chen Yi Hsun (An associate 27 January 2010 6.19 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 27 January 2011 to
of Mr Chen Hsien Min) “F-S5-f-++tH (Note 1) 26 January 2020
gL (FirsE1) ZEE-[-ttHE
(RERZBEAL) ZECRE-AITRE
(Note 4)
(Miz4)
Ms Chang Wan Hsun (An associate 27 January 2010 6.19 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 27 January 2011 to
of Mr Chang Chih-Kai and ZE-SE-A-ttA (Note 1) 26 January 2020
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao) (BriEn) ZE-—-§¥-AZttRZE
ERATT (RBEE ZEIRE-ACEAA
REEBEE (Note 4)
LHEAT) (Rit3k4)
Non-executive director
FHiTEE
Mr Chen Hsien Min (re-designated 27 January 2010 6.19 12,000,000 - 12,000,000 27 January 2011 to
from executive to non-executive “2-SF-A-1+A (Note 1) 26 January 2020
director on 27 January 2011) (Brsx) ZE—E-A-ttHE
REREE(R-Z——5-5 “RCERE-ATA
ZTHEBRAESHEMR (Note 3)
RENTES) GiE=)
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EEERE

Exercise Granted Lapsed Outstanding at Exercisable
Date of grant price during theyear ~ during the year 31 December 2010 period
R-2-%F
tZB=t+-A
RHAH T ERR ERER WRTE T8
HKS
B
Employees
[E&
In aggregate 27 January 2010 6.19 14,525,000 1,500,000 13,025,000 27 January 2011 to
Bt ZE-TE-ft4H (Note 1) 26 January 2020
(Rtzt1) “E—§-A-TtRA%
ZECRE-AT5AH
(Note 4)
(Ffzta)
In aggregate 27 January 2010 6.19 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 27 January 2011 to
ait “F-FF-ACTHA 26 January 2020
“Z-—-§-A-TtA%
“E-TFE-RC1AH
(Note 5)
(B zE5)
In aggregate 22 July 2010 7.61 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1 April 2011 to
A “E-TFEEACtZH (Note 2) 21 July 2020
LB “Z--fMA-RE
“ECEELA-+-R
(Note 6)
GED)
In aggregate 22 July 2010 761 1,100,000 - 1,100,000 T April 2011 to
CH ZE-FELA1CA (Note 2) 21 July 2020
(FizE2) “E—£@A-AE
ZE-RELA+-A
(Note 7)
(W7)
Notes: B 5 -

The closing price per share immediately before the date of grant is HK$5.70.
The closing price per share immediately before the date of grant is HK$7.54.

15% of the share options will vest on each of the five anniversary dates of the date of
grant and 25% of the share options will vest, subject to certain performance targets
to be determined by the board of directors of the Company, on the fifth anniversary
of the date of grant.

20% of the share options will vest on each of the five anniversary dates of the date of
grant.

12% of the share options will vest on each of the five anniversary dates of the date of
grant and 40% of the share options will vest, subject to certain performance targets
to be determined by the board of directors of the Company, on the fifth anniversary
of the date of the grant. Provided the employment is terminated by the Company or
its subsidiaries prior to 20 January 2015, 3,000,000 share options will vest fully at the
time of termination of employments.

One-fifth of the share options will vest on each anniversary with the first tranche
starting on 1 April 2011.

One-third of the share options will vest on each anniversary with the first tranche
starting on 1 April 2011.

Subsequent to the year-end, 2,500,000 share options were granted on 27
January 2011 to certain employees at an exercise price of HK$7.84 and will

vest on each of the five anniversary dates from the date of grant.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2010, the
Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’
interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition to those disclosed under the section “Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company”.

EEERE

FERRRAQ2ARG R EER
7z s

BARRIREZE S MG GO EXVEEE336{F 2
REMAFREZETEZERREZMAR KR _-F
—ZTFE+-HA=+—H ARFREEHE TS
TERFER (AMEA QR EHITRAS%H A
B) o ERESTEREIESTRARARD
N 2w | — 8 TS -

Percentage
of issued share
capital of
Name Capacity Number of shares the Company
P NG IR £
£8 54 RBEE RAEB DK
Long positions
#r
Lucky Earn International Limited Beneficial interests 400,719,995 (Note 1) 24.47
ERnEBA (MF5E1)
Premier China, Ltd. Beneficial interests 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.23
EmEa A (FF5E2)
TPG Asia GenPar V Advisors, Inc. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.23
RERNR 2 ER (Mi5E2)
TPG Asia Genpar V, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.23
RERAIZER (Mi5E2)
TPG Asia V, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.23
SERF 2R (MizE2)
TPG Group Holdings (SBS) Advisors, Inc. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.23
SN F 2 (B £2)
TPG Group Holdings (SBS), L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.23
SERR 2 ER (Mt5E2)
TPG Holdings I, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.23
R NCI v - £ (Pt3E2)
TPG Holdings I-A, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.23
XERARZER (MH3E2)
Mr David Bonderman Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.23
David Bonderman?t 4 SEQRZER (M5E2)
Mr James G. Coulter Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.23
James G. Coulterst & SEQR ZER (Mf5E2)
Top Glory Assets Limited Beneficial interests 200,846,895 (Note 3) 12.26
En#EA (MF5E3)
Ms Chen Yi-Chen Interests of controlled corporation 200,846,895 (Note 3) 12.26
PRI&ET LT SRR (PH7E3)
Mr Chen Yi-Hsun Interests of controlled corporation 200,846,895 (Note 3) 12.26
PR Eh %k A REQR 2 ER (MF3E3)
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Percentage
of issued share
capital of
Name Capacity Number of shares the Company
EARAREET
2% &1 RH & E REBDH
Pushkin Holding Limited Beneficial interests 147,738,920 (Note 4) 9.02
EHEAA (Ki3x4)
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920 (Note 4) 9.02
BRER T AE RERE S (H3E4)
Mr Chen Ying-Tien Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920 (Note 4) 9.02
PR 2 B 5 A L SLVNCIR (Fi5E4)
Mr Chen Ying-Che Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920 (Note 4) 9.02
PRI 4 ESLVNCIPA: £ (K3x4)
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Investment manager 49,524,000 3.02
REKE
Lending pool
CIRES gy of vy
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Custodian corporation/approved 33,852,300 2.07

Notes:

lending agent

REAN-EB/ BAEBERREA

Mr Chang Chih-Kai and Mr Chang Chih-Chiao, both executive directors of the
Company, and their two sisters have beneficial interests of 26%, 26% and 24%
each, respectively, in Lucky Earn International Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Premier China, Ltd. has subscribed for convertible bonds and warrants of the
Company. Upon full conversions of the convertible bonds and full exercise of the
warrants, an aggregate of 278,510,572 shares will be issued. Premier China, Ltd. is
a subsidiary of TPG Group Holdings (SBS) Advisors, Inc., which is in turn owned 50%
each by Mr David Bonderman and Mr James G. Coulter.

Ms Chen Yi-Chen (“Ms Chen”) and Mr Chen Yi-Hsun (“Mr Chen”) have beneficial
interests of 50% each in Top Glory Assets Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed to be interested in
200,846,895 shares of the Company held by Top Glory Assets Limited. Ms Chen
and Mr Chen are the children of Mr Chen Hsien Min, the Managing Director of the
Company.

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh, the Chairman of the Company, and his two brothers, Mr Chen
Ying-Tien and Mr Chen Ying-Che, each has one-third of the beneficial interests of
Pushkin Holding Limited. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed to be interested in the
147,738,920 shares of the Company held by Pushkin Holding Limited.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 46% and 52%, respectively, of the
Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group's five

largest suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Information on the Company’s compliance of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 25.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
throughout the year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Ying-Chieh

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAPHNE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daphne
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the "Group”) set out on pages 38 to 107, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2010, and
the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

ReElRaR

BE-T-TFT A=+ BLFE

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETAF
Note HK$' 000 HK$’000
gz F&T FET
Turnover S 5 6,623,840 5,831,994
Cost of sales $HE KA (2,822,999) (2,624,916)
Gross profit EF 3,800,841 3,207,078
Other income H U A 6 88,869 52,073
Other gains/(losses) — net Hipdas, (B518) —F58 7 11,729 (24,622)
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHEAX (2,485,379) (2,065,555)
General and administrative expenses — R MITHRFA X (444,390) (305,891)
Fair value loss on derivative financial TESMTEAFEER
instrument — warrants BB - RRERE (77,328) (203,466)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 8 (44,799) (26,704)
Share of profit of an associated company FEAE—EEE R A& T 618 630
Profit before income tax K P15 54 Al &2 51 9 850,161 633,543
Income tax expense FriSfim X 10 (238,550) (232,884)
Profit for the year FRNRET 611,611 400,659
Attributable to: AN &ML -
Equity holders of the Company RRAGIERFEBA 595,510 393,838
Non-controlling interests FE 12 I 1 A 2 16,101 6,821
611,611 400,659
Earnings per share BREF 12
Basic (HK cents) A GBMW) 36.36 24.05
Diluted (HK cents) B (OBAl) 34.15 23.93
Dividends fz 8 13 196,548 131,032

Daphne International Holdings Limited
EFRARBEEZREREBERZA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

HeREBRE

HE-T—TF+_ A=+ —AIL5E

2010 2009

—E-TF _—TTNAF

HK$’' 000 HK$" 000

FET FHET

Profit for the year FRAF 611,611 400,659

Currency translation differences BEEN =58 86,901 30,511
Realisation of translation reserve upon HE—FHEARZ

disposal of a subsidiary ME W @ B IR = (4,424)
Realisation of reserves upon dissolution R —EB ATz

of a subsidiary k) = (315)

Other comprehensive income for the year FAEMEE W E 86,901 25,772

Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKZREE 698,512 426,431

Attributable to: AT & 75 e

Equity holders of the Company N/NSIE =SSR DN 679,843 420,425

Non-controlling interests FEFR M A 18,669 6,006

698,512 426,431
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010 R-E—TF+=-A=+—H
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETAF
Note HK$' 000 HK$’000
gz F&T FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Intangible assets EBIVEE 15 129,889 26,875
Land use rights = 3t {6 FR A 16 50,336 43,498
Fixed assets Eihal=¥z3 17 710,850 560,594
Interest in an associated company R—EEE AR 2= 20 3,338 3,262
Available-for-sale financial assets ALESREE 21 63,183 33,624
Long-term rental deposits and prepayments REHESZE RENRIE 109,294 92,420
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS T & B 33 56,388 41,466
1,123,278 801,739
Current assets MENVEE
Inventories T8 22 1,084,308 889,319
Trade receivables S REBER 23 210,430 181,253
Other receivables, deposits o BRI
and prepayments e RIFERNFIE 571,360 442,731
Pledge bank deposit DHKRRITER - 2,915
Bank deposit with maturity 153X Bp R 18 = (& A
over three months ZRITTFER 24 35,385 78,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFEY 25 2,024,289 1,544,851
3,925,772 3,139,069
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade payables B I REMNER 26 577,949 385,317
Other payables and accrued charges o e BRI 5T B A 371,957 271,602
Income tax payable FEE ISR 199,295 206,764
Bank loan RITER 27 11,281 14,567
Derivative financial instrument — warrants PTESmMTI A -RIRESE 31 = 284,261
1,160,482 1,162,511
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,765,290 1,976,558
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEBAEG 3,888,568 2,778,297

Daphne International Holdings Limited
EFRARBEEZREREBERZA
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FRRERRE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010 R-Z—ZH+-A=+—8
2010 2009
—E-TBF _—TTNAF
Note HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
iN=g FHERT FHET
Financed by: EeRIR
Share capital & 28 163,789 163,789
Reserves f#1 30 2,960,543 2,039,109
Equity attributable to equity holders of RAFRERFAA
the Company el HE= 3,124,332 2,202,898
Non-controlling interests FEAE ) 14 2 183,271 39,027
Total equity R 3,307,603 2,241,925
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible bonds AT 8 A A5 5 31 556,622 515,625
License fee payables JER R AEE 32 3,460 17,850
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTSHEaE 33 5,171 2,897
Other non-current liabilities Ht3EmeaE 34 15,712 -
580,965 536,372
Total equity and non-current liabilities BERMIERBEE 3,888,568 2,778,297
CHEN YING-CHIEH CHANG CHIH-KAI
BRIEAR EEE
Director Director
EE EE
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BALANCE SHEET RERRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010 R-E—TF+=-A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETAF
Note HK$' 000 HK$’000
gz F&T FET

Non-current assets EMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZIEE 18 360,635 165,635

Current assets MENVEE

Other receivables H 4th JE AR X 334 300
Amount due from a subsidiary FE UL — FE BT B A R BR 3K 19 1,049,623 631,463
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 25 353 394,693

1,050,310 1,026,456

Current liabilities mENEE
Accrued charges fEETE R 23,439 10,499
Derivative financial instrument — warrants PTESMTE - RiER 31 - 284,261
23,439 294,760
Net current assets MENVEEFAE 1,026,871 731,696
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 1,387,506 897,331
Financed by: B IR
Share capital & A 28 163,789 163,789
Reserves {8 30 651,383 217,917
Total equity HiER 815,172 381,706
Non-current liabilities B EE
Convertible bonds AR B 55 31 556,622 515,625
Other non-current liabilities EMIERBAEE 34 15,712 -
572,334 515,625
Total equity and non-current liabilities wEEMIERDEE 1,387,506 897,331
CHEN YING-CHIEH CHANG CHIH-KAI
BRER REE
Director Director
EE EE
Daphne International Holdings Limited 42
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

FeERERR

BE_Z-TF+-_A=+—HULFE
Attributable to
equity holders of
the Company

AATERFEAEWS
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
[ i s RS st
HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—H—H 163,789 1,690,744 36,765 1,891,298
Profit for the year FRAF - 393,838 6,821 400,659
Currency translation differences EHIE R ERE - 31,279 768) 30,511
Realisation of translation reserve HE—H B A F
upon disposal of a subsidiary ZE R SR - (4,424) - (4,424)
Realisation of reserves upon A — BB A
dissolution of a subsidiary ZREEER - (268) (47) (315)
Total comprehensive income EU =BT - 420,425 6,006 426,431
Dividends fix 2 - (98,243) (3,744) (101,987)
Write-back of unclaimed dividends B R EEUR B - 5 - 5
Issue of convertible bonds BT MRES - 26,178 - 26,178
Total transactions with owners HEB AR HERE - (72,060) (3,744) (75,804)
At 31 December 2009 R_ZEZTNF
+=-—A=+—8H 163,789 2,039,109 39,027 2,241,925
Profit for the year FRAET - 595,510 16,101 611,611
Currency translation differences HHEN =58 - 84,333 2,568 86,901
Total comprehensive income THENEERE - 679,843 18,669 698,512
Acquisition of subsidiaries I s M B A R - - 129,611 129,611
Partial acquisition and disposal of Wi kBB A A
subsidiaries 217 f% 19 - (197) 197 -
Dividends % 8 - (180,173) (4,233) (184,406)
Transfer of warrants from liability R EENEBEERS
to equity (Note 30) #Ez (F5E30) - 363,370 - 363,370
Share-based payment expenses PARR 7 7 B fE 2 AP 3R 2 - 58,589 - 58,589
Write-back of unclaimed dividends B E R EEURE - 2 - 2
Total transactions with owners HEF AR 5 - 241,591 125,575 367,166
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—FF
+—-A=+—H 163,789 2,960,543 183,271 3,307,603
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #F&H&RER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010 HE-_Z-ZTF+_A=+—RHILFE
2010 2009
—E-FF _—TTAF
Note HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
k=g FTER FHET
Operating activities KEEE
Cash generated from operations LEEACRS 35 1,156,650 1,550,844
Income tax paid in Hong Kong BB BAEN = (374)
Income tax paid outside Hong Kong B BEBLIMNOEPTEH (264,359) (200,450)
Net cash generated from operating activities & & EEEL RS FE 892,291 1,350,020
Investing activities REFH
Dividend received from an associated company © 4 — & B & A 7% & 582 531
Interest received B2 U F & 37,151 6,609
Net proceed from disposal of a subsidiary HE—EH B AW FE - 3,514
Payment for land use rights b {8 AR 3K (3.820) (4,485)
Purchase of fixed assets HEETEE (272,968) (138,237)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets o Bl B E MK 4,080 5,130
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposit with FREBBE=EA
maturity over three months RITFFOR L, (3G 00) 42,615 (78,000)
Acquisition of license rights W B R E (5 A A (4,532) -
Acquisition of an available-for-sale YiE el &
financial asset TREE (29,559) -
Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries WEM B AR 2H SR L FE 36 (2,758) -
Net cash used in investing activities WEEYFAZE®FE (229,209) (204,938)
Financing activities MEFH
Dividends paid 2R E (180,173) (98,243)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BT SRR SRR B (4,233) (3,744)
Interest paid ERAHE (20,608) (13,839)
Issue of convertible bonds and warrants BATRAIR IR (B 75 R R FE - 609,693
New bank loans raised MEBRITER 88,920 94,684
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (122,899) (350,948)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposit BIFRITEROR D (3 hn) 2,915 (2,915)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (AR EE
financing activities ZHEFE (236,078) 234,688
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ReERBFEWEN 427,004 1,379,770
Cash and cash equivalents W—A—RAZH&
as at 1 January RReEEY 25 1,544,851 147,962
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREa) 2 52,434 17,119
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—8zH&
as at 31 December rETEED 25 2,024,289 1,544,851
Daphne International Holdings Limited 44
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

GENERAL INFORMATION
Daphne International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (together the “Group”) is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and distribution of footwear, apparel and accessories
in China and export sales with major market in the United States of
America (the “US").

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P. O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

These consolidated accounts have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated accounts are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated accounts have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The consolidated accounts have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair

value through profit or loss.

The preparation of accounts in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated accounts, are
disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Daphne International Holdings Limited

s RERD A

b= S

Standards and amendments effective and adopted
by the Group in 2010
HKFRS 3 (Revised) “

a number of changes in the accounting for business

Business Combinations” introduces
combinations that affect the initial measurement of non-
controlling interests, the accounting for transaction costs,
the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of
a contingent consideration and business combinations
achieved in stages. These changes will impact the amount
of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period
that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted
for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change
will have no impact on goodwill, nor will it result in a
gain or loss. Furthermore, the revised standard changes
the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as
well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Consequential
amendments were made to various standards, including but
not limited to HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, HKAS
12 "Income Taxes”, HKAS 21 “The Effects of Changes
HKAS 28 “

Associates” and HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”.

in Foreign Exchange Rates”, Investments in

The changes introduced by these revised standards
are applied prospectively and affect the accounting of
acquisition, loss of control and transactions with non-

controlling interests after 1 January 2010.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Standards and amendments effective and adopted
by the Group in 2010 (Continued)

The following new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations are mandatory for the first time for
the financial period beginning 1 January 2010 but are not
currently relevant to the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs -
Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment - Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

HKFRS 5 (Amendment) Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and Reclassification of Embedded

HKAS 39 Derivatives and Financial
Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in

a Foreign Operation
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

HK-Int5 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009

Amendments published in May 2009
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective nor been adopted by the Group in

2010

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets °

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Classification
of Rights Issues ?

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs -
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosure for First - time Adopters 3

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfer of
Financial Assets *

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HK(FRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement '

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011
Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010
Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012
Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

Apart from the adoption of HKFRS 9 which may have an
effect on the classification and the treatment of fair value
changes of existing available-for-sale financial assets, the
management anticipates that the adoption of these new/
revised HKFRS will have no significant impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquire either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquisition and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Consolidation (Continued)
(i) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Group. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the equity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit and loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit and loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significantly influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are classified to profit and loss
where appropriate.

(i) Associated company

Daphne International Holdings Limited

s RERD A

e S

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investment in an associated company is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and is
initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associated company’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in the associated company equals
or exceeds its interest in the associated company, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated
company.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Each of the Group's entities determines its own functional
currency and items included in the accounts of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated accounts are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD"), which is different
from the Company’s functional currency of Renminbi
("RMB"). The directors consider that the presentation
of consolidated accounts in HKD will facilitate the
interpretation and understanding of financial information
of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated profit and loss account within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated profit and loss account within other gains/
(losses) — net.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security
and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in the profit and loss account, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are recognised in the profit and loss account
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale
reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each profit and loss account

are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

(d) Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor), including upfront payment
made for leasehold land use rights, are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiaries at the date
of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Separately recognised
goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains or losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

License rights

Separately acquired license rights are stated at historical
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. They are initially measured as
the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the
license at the time of the acquisition. The consideration
given represents expected variable payments based on
predetermined criteria on future revenues from the licensed
business that can be reliably estimated at the time of the
acquisition.

License rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the rights of 7 to 30 years. Amortisation is
included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

(i) Acquired trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Trademarks acquired in a business
combination are recognised initially at fair value at the
acquisition date and subsequently carried at the amount
initially recognised less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation of
trademarks that have definite useful lives is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the costs of acquired
trademarks and patents over their estimated useful lives
of 20 years. Amortisation is included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated profit and loss
account.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

(9)

Daphne International Holdings Limited

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost mainly
represents the consideration paid for the right to use the land on
which various plants and buildings are situated for a period of
10 to 50 years from the date the respective right was granted.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the period of the rights.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets, comprise buildings, leasehold improvements,
construction-in-progress, plant and machinery, furniture, fixtures
and equipment and motor vehicles, are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the profit and loss account during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less accumulated impairment losses to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:
Buildings Over the terms of the lease or
50 years, whichever is shorter
Over the terms of the lease or 1
to 5 years, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

Construction-in-progress represents fixed assets under
construction and pending installation and is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery.
No depreciation is charged on construction-in-progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and are available
for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to fixed assets and depreciated in
accordance with the policy stated above.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

0]

Fixed assets (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(h)).

Gains or losses on disposals of fixed assets, the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant assets, are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each balance sheet date.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets

at initial recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current

assets.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables comprise trade receivables
and other receivables (Note 2(k)), deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2(1)) in the balance sheet.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss
account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial
assets classified under financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are presented in the profit and loss account within other
(losses)/gains — net in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences
on monetary securities are recognised in profit and loss
account; translation differences on non-monetary securities
are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the profit and loss account as gains and

losses from available-for-sale financial assets.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the profit and loss account as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs and

relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the profit and loss account — is removed
from equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account on
equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss
account. Impairment test on trade receivables is described in
Note 2(k).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

(k)

U

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, work-in-progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, calculated on the weighted average basis, comprises
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity) and excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The amount of the loss upon provision made is recognised
in the profit and loss account. When a trade receivable is
proven uncollectible, it is written off against the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the
profit and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, time deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(m) Trade payables

Daphne International Holdings Limited

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Derivative financial instruments

All derivative financial instruments are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss and the gain or loss derived from changes
in its fair value is recognised in the profit and loss account
unless the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge
accounting. Transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of
derivative financial instruments are charged to the profit and loss
account during the period in which they are incurred. Derivative
financial instruments are derecognised and transferred to equity
when the financial instruments ceased to be derivative in nature.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share capital
at the option of the holders, where the number of shares that
would be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration
that would be received do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
and an equity component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is determined using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to the conversion option as equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost,
calculated using the effective interest method, until extinguished
on conversion or maturity. The equity component is recognised in
equity, net of any tax effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity component and
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion are transferred to share capital and share premium
for the shares issued. When the bond is redeemed, the relevant
equity component is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(g) Current and deferred income taxes

(r)

Daphne International Holdings Limited

b S i

Income taxes for the year comprise current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account except
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity and in which
case it is recognised in equity. The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries/places where
the Company and its subsidiaries and associated company
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
accounts. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and an associated company except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i)  Pension obligations
The Group participates in a number of defined contribution
retirement schemes in Hong Kong, Taiwan and various

cities in China where the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to separately
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the funds do
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan under which the Group entities receive
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (share options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the share options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and retaining
an employee of the Group entity over a specific period).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of share options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of share options that are expected to vest based on
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the profit and
loss account with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the share options are
exercised.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
with reference to a number of factors including the Group's
operating results, individual and market performance and
directors’ discretion. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(t)

Daphne International Holdings Limited
=K Ok

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions for restructuring comprise lease termination
penalties, employee termination payments and anticipated loss
on disposal of relevant assets. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow of economic resources will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class

of obligation may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of applicable value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured.

Revenue from sales of goods manufactured or traded is
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Royalty income and franchise income are recognised on an
accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest
rate.

Government incentives are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the incentives will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with.

Vendor rebate is recognised when the rights to receive payments
are established in accordance with the terms of agreements with

vendors.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the periods of the leases.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors who review the Group’s financial
information mainly from a business perspective, namely brand
business and manufacturing business.

Segment assets mainly excluded interest in an associated
company, available-for-sale financial assets, deferred income tax

assets and other assets that are managed on a central basis.

Segment liabilities mainly excluded derivative financial
instrument — warrants, convertible bonds, deferred income tax

liabilities and other liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s accounts in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the board of directors and
the equity holders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit risk and

liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The

Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign exchange

risk exposures whenever necessary.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s management who

identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation

with the Group’s operating units. Major financial risks identified were

reviewed by the board of directors and are summarised below:

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in China with transactions primarily
settled in RMB, HKD and United States dollar (USD). The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised financial assets (mainly bank
balances and trade receivables) and financial liabilities (mainly
bank loans) denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group’s entities to which they relate.

As at 31 December 2010, the post-tax profit of the Group would
have been decreased by approximately HK$5,803,000 (2009:
HK$22,378,000) if RMB had strengthened by 5% against HKD/
USD mainly resulted from foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of HKD and USD denominated monetary assets and
liabilities with all other variables held constant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk mainly arising
from short-term bank borrowings and overdrafts bearing interest
at floating rates. The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk arising from the convertible bonds bearing interest at fixed
rate. Management intend to draw short-term bank loans as to
increase flexibility in financing. The Group will review whether
bank loans bearing fixed or floating rates should be drawn from
time to time with reference to the trend of changes in interest
rates. The Group did not enter into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.

As at 31 December 2010, the post-tax profit of the Group
would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$20,484,000 (2009: HK$16,112,000) if the interest rates
had been increased/decreased by 100 basis points with all other

variables held constant.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS iR B Bt EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3
(c) Credit risk

MBEEREE (&)
(0 FERE

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets (mainly trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits and bank balances) as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with
respect to the retail business as sales are made in cash or via
major credit cards. The majority of the Group’s trade and other
receivables arose from credit sales to trading customers. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual balance receivable at
each balance sheet date to ensure that proper procedures are
followed up for irrecoverable amounts.

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various landlords in China
and Taiwan and are due to refund upon the expiry of the tenancy
agreements and handover of the leased premises. During the
year, the Group did not experience significant defaults by the
landlords.

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, substantially
all the Group’s bank balances and term deposits with banks
were held in registered financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, Taiwan and Mainland China which management
assessed and believed are of acceptable credit quality. As
at 31 December 2010, the Group has bank deposits placed
in Mainland China with state-owned banks and non state-
owned banks of HK$218,349,000 (2009: HK$421,569,000)
and HK$1,434,698,000 (2009: HK$550,707,000) respectively,
including HK$1,220,492,000 (2009: HK$272,412,000) placed
with a private sino-foreign bank. The Group currently has no
specified policy of limiting its credit exposure to any financial
institution and management does not expect any loss arising
from non-performance by these counterparties.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group placed
a number of principal-guaranteed structured deposits with
registered financial institutions with individual notional
amount of HK$1,148,600 to HK$724,847,000 with maturity
periods from 3 days to 6 months. These structured deposits
are interest rate-linked principal protected investments which
management has the option of terminating at any time with the
counterparties. Management believes that there is no significant
credit risk with respect to such structured deposits as they were
made with registered financial institutions of no history of
default. As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the
Group did not hold structured deposits.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its

current obligations when they fall due.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the

maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure

of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the

Group. The Group also maintains a healthy level of liquid assets

and banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash

flows to meet any unexpected and material cash requirements

in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2010,
the Group had unutilised banking facilities of HK$214,880,000
(2009: HK$188,422,000).

The contractual maturity of the Group's financial liabilities based

on the undiscounted cash flows is as follows:

R B M5

3 MERRBRERE(E)
(d) RBESEAR

RBELEREANEBEENETRA

FHMNREEZ AR -

AEBEBREE BE BRI
BEeRERTERBEREZIRSE

BHER LA ERERAERDHESMN

S S

REBREEERIRTT

MELFNEBRKT BREAEE
TSR BERS 8 48 2 38 & LA RHE ]
TBEZINNERB TR - RZF—
TFE+ZA=+—A AEEZXH
FBiR{TR & 5214,880,000/8 7L (=&

ENF

rEEE
SEzaNIHEWT

188,422,000/ 7T) ©

EE(%*E#;EQEEEEE:EM =

Between 3 Between Between
Within and 6 months 1yearand
3months 6 months and 1year 5 years Total
=Rz ~MERE

=EAR ~EA —-& -FzIf @t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FTET FAET TET TET TEX

At 31 December 2010 R-Z-ZF§

+=A=+-8

Trade payables ECTINES 577,949 - - - 577,949
Other payables Hi R ERT 364,881 - - - 364,881
Bank loan ﬁﬁﬁém 11,281 - - - 11,281
License fee payable ENEHEREES - - - 3,460 3,460
Non-current liabilities FrRBHaE - - - 15,712 15,712
Convertible bonds ARRES - - - 648,725 648,725
Interest on convertible bonds AT RR & 5 F| & 10,136 10,136 10,136 49,668 80,076
964,247 10,136 10,136 717,565 1,702,084

At 31 December 2009 RZZENF

+ZA=+—H

Trade payables BHRNER 385,317 - - - 385,317
Other payables H AR BR R 259,476 - - - 259,476
Bank loan ROTER 14,567 - 14,567
License fee payables ERNBFEREE - - - 17,850 17,850
Convertible bonds AARES - - - 626,175 626,175
Interest on convertible bonds ~ A[# iR EHF| & - 8,594 8,594 59,297 76,485
644,793 23,161 8,594 703,322 1,379,870

Daphne International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS iR B Bt EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3
(e) Capital risk management

MBEREE (&)
(e) EXEMER

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratio in order to support its

business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. There were no changes in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is
net debt (being total bank loans and convertible bonds, less total
cash and bank balances) divided by equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. The net gearing ratios as at the balance
sheet dates were as follows:

REEEAEREE 2 T 2B RR
EASEZHELEE ) REFRR
ZEARLE  UXHEEBLEER
BECREE -

REEEBRHERER  WHEER
NEEEH TR o REE AR E M
REREZRE - MRRRBERRK
BITHR D AE RN A R ERER o
REBEZE-Z-—ZFF+-_A=+—HRK
—ZEENFF+_A=+—HLFE
A - BEBE - BERSUE R I ) -

AEBRAFAGBL R (BUFER (R
TERRABRBESFEERRS RIR
TR BRUA R AR B AL
) ERER - MEERZFAGHT
R

2010 2009

—Z-ZTF —"ITTNF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FERT FHEIT

Bank loan RITER 11,281 14,567

Convertible bonds Al A% 55 556,622 515,625

Less: Cash and bank balances R e RIRTTERTE (2,059,674)  (1,625,766)

Net debt FET (1,491,771)  (1,095,574)
Equity attributable to equity holders AR Al zEH A A

of the Company JE 15w 3,124,332 2,202,898

Net cashFBE NetcashFHE &

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Daphne International Holdings Limited
=K Ok

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assets are impaired on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the intangible assets are
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such determination

is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management expects that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilise
the temporary differences or tax losses. Deferred income tax
liabilities on temporary differences relating to undistributed
profits of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are not recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and management expects it is probable
that profits will not be distributed from these subsidiaries to
their foreign holding companies in the foreseeable future.
Management reassessed its expectation at each balance sheet
date.

Depreciation and amortisation

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation/amortiation charges for the Group’s fixed assets
and intangible assets. Management will revise the depreciation/
amortisation charges where useful lives are different to
previously estimated, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation/amortisation expense in future

periods.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Estimated write-downs of inventories to net

(e)

realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are
made for inventories where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be realised. The identification
of obsolescence requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the variance is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of inventories and
net realisable value for the periods in which such estimate is
changed.

Fair value estimation of financial instruments
Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured

according to the levels of the fair value hierarchy defined as

follows:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

(i) Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices); and

Level 3 —

(iii)

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$63,183,000 (2009: HK$33,624,000) were
measured by level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy.

During the year, the Company executed an amendment deed to
change the denomination of the exercise price of its derivative
financial instrument — warrants to RMB which is the same as the
Group's functional currency. The derivative financial instrument
— warrants were accordingly classified to reserve as it became
qualified as equity. As at 31 December 2009, the derivative
financial instrument — warrants measured by level 2 of the fair
value measurement hierarchy.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value estimation of financial instruments

(Continued)

The fair value of derivative financial instrument — warrants
determined by using valuation techniques which require
subjective assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the date of valuation. The key assumptions
are made with reference to the nature of the warrants, the
historical prices and the implied volatility of the underlying
trading security of the Company, the conversion price of
the warrants, the exercisable period of the warrants and the
expected dividend yield of the underlying trading security of the

Company.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represented sales of footwear and accessories to external
customers. The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been
identified as the executive directors who assesses the performance of
the business from a business unit perspective, i.e. brand business and
manufacturing business and determines the two reportable segments
accordingly.

Brand business represents trading and distribution of footwear
products and accessories under self-owned brands, “Daphne” and
“Shoebox” and other acquired and licensed brands. Manufacturing
business represents manufacturing and sales of footwear products
under original-equipment manufacturing arrangements and for
distribution by brand business.

Daphne International Holdings Limited 70
EFRARBEEREREBER QA

AR B M5

4 EEGTHEE R E (&)

(e) EMT AN FEEMET (&)

TESMIAZATFEBE-RRES
Ty{E A E R ATk INRETT 2 EE T
EE mitPRZEBEBREKEEDNE
EMME%*?EEHjEEZmﬁHﬁf’EHj o F
EBRRVISERREZF MG - AQ
Tﬁf'%;% B2 B RE KSR
e RRER 2 BRRE  RBREZZ
TEMRARREERSESR 2B
BB EmIEL -

GXRBERIBER
EEBRIINE S HEREER RN -
SBIBMERTE ZPTEFEREY
£ BRPES RIS KRR
B LRUESTEETREH B -

mEEBEEERDHAAMBREXE]
N [EEME AR AW AR e 2 B8
EmRELH - REHEBIEREBRIHRE
HERENHEEREM AR SmEE
TEETHIE -



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

\
AR E et

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 BEERDSBEL (E)
(CONTINUED)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2010 is as HE-_Z—ZETF+_A=+—HIFEZ
follows: DEERAT -
Inter-
Manufacturing segment
Brand business business  elimination Group
mRER HEEK  SHEHE s 1
Daphne Shoebox Others
EXE 23] it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TER TER TER

Revenue from external customers
Inter-segment revenue

HOEP Y
D EERE

Turnover
Segment results

EXE
GRS

Unallocated corporate income

Unallocated corporate expenses

Fair value loss on derivative financial
instrument - warrants

Finance costs

Share of profit of an associated company

Profit before income tax

Depreciation and amortisation

AREEFRA
APELERX
TEERIALRTEE
BR-AkEE
BBRE
EiE-HRenmRM

BREERA AR

TEREH

Capital expenditure

BARIX

Segment assets

NEEE

Interest in an associated company
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred income tax assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

R-ABERE S
THERRAE
BEMEHEE
ROELREE

BEE

HHAG

Deferred income tax liabilities
Convertible bonds
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

EEMEHRAE
AERER
APELEEE

BRE
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5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 ZEBERLSIFER(F)
(CONTINUED)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2009 is as BHE-_ZETZANF+_A=+—HIFEZ
follows: DEE R
Inter-
Manufacturing segment
Brand business business  elimination Group
mEER HEEE  SEEHE ]
Daphne Shoebox Others
EXxR HiE it
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER FAER
Revenue from external customers HNRENE 4,059,034 954,671 277,580 540,709 - 5,831,994
Inter-segment revenue DR 3,937 - 1,003 573,292 (578,232) -
Turnover BETE 4,062,971 954,671 278,583 1,114,001 (578,232) 5,831,994
Segment results nEEE 780,159 102,272 (66,581) 56,514 8,144 880,508
Unallocated corporate income FOBLERA 4,552
Unallocated corporate expenses ﬂi% BEERS (21,977)
Fair value loss on derivative financial TELBIARTEE
instrument - warrants BR-ARES (203,466)
Finance costs WKWK (26,704)
Share of profit of an associated company B — BB L R E B 630
Profit before income tax BREERAET 633,543
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 85,228 20,927 10,922 17,997 - 135,074
Impairment on gooduwill BHERE - - 10,606 - - 10,606
Capital expenditure EXRY 88,137 24,253 7,905 2,427 - 142,722
Segment assets PHEE 2,123,992 620,242 180,139 460,878 - 3,385,251
Interest in an associated company il YNGR ¥ 3,262
Available-for-sale financial assets THELREE 33,624
Deferred income tax assets ERMEHEE 41,466
Unallocated corporate assets FORGEEE 477,205
Total assets BEE 3,940,808
Segment liabilities PHEE 517,105 86,100 39,115 243,256 - 885,576
Deferred income tax liabilities LUﬁ Mgf 2,897
Derivative financial instrument - warrants  $74 % g L& — 2R EE 284,261
Convertible bonds }ﬁﬂxf,ﬁ 515,625
Unallocated corporate liabilities FORGEERE 10,524
Total liabilities BaE 1,698,883
Daphne International Holdings Limited 72
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R B M5t

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 BEERIBER (H)
(CONTINUED)
The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based FELERKRESELKRNE - BB R
on a measure of segment profit before interest, tax and any fair value Ao T AERNAFEBEREZKEER
gain or loss on derivative financial instruments. Certain corporate HOEENHE  UTIESKLENANE
overhead expenses, including management fee, rental and utilities H ABTHrELERT (BIEERESE  He
were re-allocated among individual segments based on estimated KKER) THRBMAEHE A 2R &5 50
consumption. BB ©
Inter-segment revenue is charged in accordance with terms DEEMETHIRE F BT RIBE 2 GG
determined and agreed mutually. Revenue from external customers o MBERZHIINERPREEZRE S
of brand business is mainly derived from Mainland China, Taiwan and BIARE  a2REB  MBYEEBLZ LI
Hong Kong and revenue from external customers of manufacturing BFEFWZTEREEXFBARH -HE—
business is mainly derived from United States of America. None of the T—ZTFF+_A=ZF+—HBHRZZTEZTLF
customers accounted for 10% or more of the total turnover of the +-A=+—BIWMEAFE  HEEFMHG
Group during both years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December REEEEEFETE10% A | -
20009.
The Group's non-current assets, excluding available-for-sale financial AEEZERDEE (JHESRHEENE
assets and deferred income tax assets, are located mainly in Mainland JEFTISTHE EMRAN) £ 2650 B R B -
China.
OTHER INCOME 6 HiblA
2010 2009
ZE-2F _—ZTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Government incentives IR T 4 B 30,488 29,623
Interest income FLEWA 37,151 6,609
Franchise and royalty income R R BEREA 6,283 4,150
Income derived from an available-for-sale KRB /] H&E € @& E 2 WA
financial asset (Note 21(a)) (BFEE21(a)) 3,000 3,000
Vendor rebate & 77 =0 957 989
Handling income FEERA 662 1,516
Gross rental income e W ALzE 350 465
Others HAt 9,978 5,721
88,869 52,073
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7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET

R B M5

7 Hittwas (BR) - FE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — R E R R 2 W - 1,197
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary A — B AR 2 s - 315
Impairment loss on goodwill B R EEE - (10,606)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBETEEEEIE (12,392) (18,876)
Net exchange gain PE 5 U % )5 58 14,628 3,348

Net gain on early termination REKILFTERAESZ
of a license right (Note 15(b)) U w55 58 (M E15(0)) 9,493 -
11,729 (24,622)

8 FINANCE COSTS 8 MM

2010 2009
—2-F&E —TTAF
HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
TR FEIT
Interest on convertible bonds AR E 5 LS 41,583 21,843
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZFE 677 3,238
Interest on license fee payables AT REET B 1,827 1,623
Interest on other non-current liabilities HiIERBEER L 712 -
44,799 26,704

Daphne International Holdings Limited
EFARARBBEEEREBERZA
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9 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

R B M5t

9 BRFTEHATRF

BT SBATRAE R, (GEA) THISE -

2010 2009
—Z-ZTF —“ITTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 R A g 1,393 1,816
Amortisation of license rights R A G 3,774 1,966
Amortisation of trademarks 727 152 2 8 3,397 -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B8R BN & 5,769 3,941
Cost of inventories sold including EHTFEXRA
write-back of provision for BEBHEFE
slow-moving inventories of P {# %% 2116,835,00078 7T
HK$16,835,000 (2009: (ZZT N4 : #1%38,989,000/ 7T)
provision of HK$38,989,000) 2,410,482 2,318,998
Depreciation of fixed assets ErEENE 133,656 131,292
Employee benefits expense (Note 14) B E@FFHZ (MsE14) 836,555 607,393
Operating lease rentals (including THREFILLEHERS
concessionaire fees) in respect of (BREESEFHEER)
land and buildings 1,313,866 1,151,107
Write-back of provision for impairment 2 5 & W 85 5505 (B 5 4 [0 3%
of trade receivables (156) (152)
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FrE8iE X
2010 2009
—Z-ZTF —“ITTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Current tax EHNIE 248,030 237,338
Under-provision in prior years MEFEREDNR 1,654 3,665
Deferred tax (Note 33) IEFER A (13E33) (11,134) (8,119)
238,550 232,884
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS Bk B MfaE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10 FREHBA X (&)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable domestic

AEBBRRIBHAAENZAEHRER
ERAAEEERZEREMHEMmME

tax rates of the Group entities as follows: ZERPIE . EZBNOT
2010 2009
—E-2F —_ZTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTER FHEIT
Profit before income tax F& BT 15 %4 AT 22 K 850,161 633,543
Less: Share of profit of an associated R — B QR AR
company (618) (630)
849,543 632,913
Income tax calculated at domestic REBER S FTE LR
tax rates applicable to profits HAZEMBERGTE
in the respective countries/places e 193,763 148,613
Tax concessions TRIER % (56) -
Income not subject to tax AT A (11,167) (9,580)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  “~a] F1F 41,998 55,263
Tax losses for which no deferred REREETIBEEZ
tax assets recognised I EE 672 10,423
Utilisation of previously unrecognised HRABTIRERACHIEERE
tax losses (3,019) (1,201)
Under provision in prior years BAFERBETR 1,654 3,665
Derecognition of previously recognised &R I ERBEC R
deferred income tax assets BREMSHREE 2,733 5,768
Withholding taxes on royalties and profits 2 % & & K & B A fE I B A 7
appropriated by subsidiaries in DIRB R Z AR
Mainland China 11,972 19,937
Others HAh - (4)
Income tax expense Fris M X 238,550 232,884

The weighted average domestic tax rate was 23% (2009: 23%).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profit for the year. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax has been made in the accounts for the year ended
31 December 2009 as the Group does not have any assessable profit
arising in Hong Kong. Income tax on profits arising outside Hong Kong
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the rates of income tax prevailing in the countries/places in which the

Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

10

1"

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Provision for China corporate income tax was calculated based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%) on the assessable income
of each of the Group’s entities except that certain subsidiaries of the
Company operating in China are eligible for certain tax exemptions
and concessions including tax holiday and reduced corporate income
tax rate during the year. Accordingly, the China corporate income tax
for such subsidiaries has been provided for after taking into account of
these tax exemptions and concessions.

Pursuant to the China corporate income tax laws, 10% withholding
tax is levied on all foreign investors, except that only 5% is levied for
foreign investors which are incorporated in Hong Kong, in respect of
dividend distributions arising from a foreign investment enterprise’s
profit earned after 31 December 2007. As at 31 December 2010,
temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits on the
Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China amounted to approximately
HK$1,486,648,000 (31 December 2009: HK$782,012,000) with
deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$74,332,000 (31
December 2009: HK$39,101,000) not being recognised in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits. The Company has been determined that it is not probable
that profits will be distributed from the foreign-invested enterprises
established in Mainland China to their foreign holding companies
in the foreseeable future as it controls the dividend policy of its
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the China corporate income tax laws, withholding tax
at a reduced rate of 7% by treaty is applied to the Group’s entities
incorporated in Hong Kong for royalties received or receivable.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with

in the accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$187,984,000
(2009: HK$92,738,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group's profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$595,510,000 (2009: HK$393,838,000) and 1,637,892,384 (2009:
1,637,892,384) ordinary shares in issue throughout the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$637,093,000 (2009: HK$415,681,000) and the adjusted
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,865,789,759 (2009:
1,737,173,606) after taking into consideration of conversion of the
convertible bonds and exercise of share options.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS Bk B MfaE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 12 BRER (E)
2010 2009
—E-TF —TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FTHT FHEIT

Profit attributable to equity holders of KRABIEDFEAAELAT

the Company 595,510 393,838
Interest on convertible bonds AR E R 2 B 41,583 21,843
Adjusted profit attributable to equity KRABRARNRERFBA

holders of the Company FER BT 637,093 415,681

2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
Number Number of
of shares shares

4 81 B B in g8

Number of ordinary shares in issue FAEETEBREE
throughout the year 1,637,892,384 1,637,892,384
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds R gREF 2w E 178,510,572 99,281,222
Effect of exercise of share options TR E & 49,386,803 -
Weighted average number of ordinary HEEEEmMAR 2 LRR
shares adjusted for effect of dilution In#E 5 2 1,865,789,759 1,737,173,606
The warrants are anti-dilutive and are ignored in the calculation of REEFAREESER  BHRETE
diluted earnings per share for years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 TE-ZETFE+-_A=+—HBE-EE jLE
December 2009. T oA+ HEFEZERBERFRE
W EERA -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

AR B M5t

13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FET

Interim dividend, paid, of HK6.0 cents BT E R B e R A AR6.0 L
(2009: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share ZETAF  3.081) 98,274 49,137

Final dividend, proposed, of HK6.0 cents  #&/& K 2% B & i% & @Ik 6.075 1
(2009: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share ZETNAF  5.081) 98,274 81,895
196,548 131,032

At a meeting held on 30 March 2011, the Board proposed a final

dividend of HK6.0 cents per share in respect of th

e year ended

31 December 2010 to be approved by the shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed dividend is

not reflected as a dividend payable in these accoun

ts but will be

reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31

December 2011.

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense, including directors’ emoluments,

represents:

14

RZE-——H=ZA=Z=1THE{TzE2
b EEgRIRBE_2-ZTF+=
A=t—HRIEFERZERAKE B6.0
Bl BREERRBFRAE LRAKER
SHE o WEAERERIERA AL AHIEE
RS EEINEBE_ZT——F1T-A
St HEFEZREBMOE

BERAMAX
EEENNX (BREFHE) K -

2010 2009

—E2E-FTF _—ZTTAF

HK$’' 000 HK$" 000

FET FHEIT

Wages, salaries and bonuses T8 FHekitd 747,051 578,189
Defined contribution pension FEREERIRKRE KA (i)

costs (Note (a)) 30,915 29,204

Share-based payment expense PARR 9 2 BB 2 A< 3B 32 58,589 -

836,555 607,393

(a) Defined contribution pension costs

As at both 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, no
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable in the future.

Contributions payable as at 31 December 2010 of

approximately

HK$5,811,000 (2009: HK$4,723,000) are included in other

payables and accrued charges.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS Bk B MfaE

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14 EE®&FIR X (&)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) ESEE
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the year REBEZ2-_ZT—ZF+_A=+—HIt
ended 31 December 2010 is set out below: FE  ARBISEEZHNOT :
Defined
contribution Share-based
pension Discretionary payment
Fees Salaries costs bonuses expense Total
EREMR UR % AER
ne & BHRERAE MERAL ZARMEX @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FER FER FET TR

Name of director EEpsg
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh RERLE - 4,010 22 5,750 13,396 23,178
Mr Chen Hsien Min REREE - 3,994 2 5,750 10,047 19,813
Mr Chang Chih-Kai RENEE - 804 6 2,077 5,442 8,329
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao REBLE = 806 - 2,077 4,605 7,488
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming BERAEE 72 - - - - 72
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai =IBR K& 72 - - - - 72
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng PRiREE 72 - - - - 72
216 9,614 50 15,654 33,490 59,024
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the year N E—EFZhFE+-_A=+—HIt
ended 31 December 2009 is set out below: FE AR EES2EHWNOT -
Defined
contribution
pension Discretionary
Fees Salaries costs bonuses Total
E R
ik e RBRAESKAR BB AL et
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Name of director BEEnR
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh BREA LA 960 2,869 32 1,570 5,431
Mr Chen Hsien Min PRERSTAE 960 3,007 32 1,000 4,999
Mr Chang Chih-Kai RE LA 960 1,035 32 1,000 3,027
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao REBEAE - 1,077 - - 1,077
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming ERR A 72 - - - 72
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai = B8 5T A 72 - - - 72
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng 2P e R 5 A& 72 - - - 72
3,096 7,988 96 3,570 14,750
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include four (2009: four) directors whose
emoluments are presented above. The emolument payable to
the remaining one (2009: one) individual during the year is as

AR B M5t

14 EERBABEX (&)
(0 EEBEHFAL
NAFEE  AEETLESHALE
ENE(CEEAE  ME)EE - H
MeEoR EXRE - ENENS
h—% (ZBBRE: — %) AL 2 M

follows: SHBWOT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
FExT FHBT
Salaries and bonuses e MIEA 4,001 907
Defined contribution pension costs & 8 fit FUE R4 Ak A& - 57
Share-based payment expense LARR (0 B 2 S A 2,800 -
6,801 964

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. No
directors or the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to

waive any emoluments during the year.
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

AR B M5

15 B EE

EXEBRERZRAERQA

Group
rEH
License
Goodwill rights Trademarks Total
G5k BAEAE (X M5t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHEL FET FAL FEL
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(¥ 7E@)) (K &Eb))
Cost ¥
At 1 January 2009 and RZZEZTNF—A—H
31 December 2009 RZZTENEF
+=—R=+—"H 25,685 15,154 - 40,839
Exchange adjustment b 5 T 26 1,036 2,072 3,134
Additions NE - 7,992 - 7,992
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B 8 A 7 907 36,816 71,760 109,483
Termination of a license right RIFETERARE - (15,154) - (15,154)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-FF
+=-A=+—H 26,618 45,844 73,832 146,294
Accumulated amortisation and REEERRE
impairment
At 1 January 2009 RZZETNF—HA—H - 1,392 - 1,392
Amortisation for the year NE G EE - 1,966 - 1,966
Impairment for the year RNEEFE 10,606 - - 10,606
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZTNEF
+=-A=+—8 10,606 3,358 - 13,964
Exchange adjustment fE 5 38 - 50 99 149
Amortisation for the year REZHE - 3,774 3,397 7,171
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B A A - 281 - 281
Termination of a license right RIERETE A - (5,160) - (5,160)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF
+=-A=+—H 10,606 2,303 3,496 16,405
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF
+=-A=+—H 16,012 43,541 70,336 129,889
At 31 December 2009 RZETNF
+=-A=+—8 15,079 11,796 - 26,875
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU") identified
according to the operating segment. The Group performs impairment tests
on goodwill annually, or more frequently if there is any indication that it
may be impaired, by comparing the recoverable amount to the carrying
amount as at the balance sheet date. The recoverable amount of the CGU
was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period. The pre-tax discount rate and the estimated
weighted average annual sales growth rate after the 3-year budgeted period
applied to the cash flow projections was 20% and ranged from 1% to 2%
respectively. The budgeted gross profit margin and net profit margin were
determined by the management for the CGU based on past performance
and its expectations for market development. Management believes that any
reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would
not cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount
significantly.

License rights

In 2010, the Group terminated a license right agreement with a third party and
a difference of HK$9,493,000, which was resulted from the derecognition of
the license right with a carrying amount of HK$9,994,000 and write-back of
a license right payable of HK$19,487,000, was recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

16 LAND USE RIGHTS

AR B M5t

5 |BILEE (&)

Mt

(a)

AENSPEEREBEESBE S 2 AEEE
%Fiiuwﬁiéiﬁun AEETE
BEHF (HWERAEREZEATR - AIE
SAE) ERERAE - HEAREEBRBAKRE
> RABAREEELL R - BeEL Bz AE
i@ﬂ&@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ#i Rt ETIERIR
FE@EM&Z FHREE RS RER
st E - B =FHHEERERSRE
B {65 P 7 1 T A B 0 % f I F 4 4
EHEERERD B A20%R1%E2% - HE
EEBNZEEEMNEREFNETIAEERE
&L&%ﬁﬁﬁgm%%EZﬁ%ﬁgmo
BEEREMRE - W bl o B R AR BRI
AEABREE YT eEYFHEZERE
AiIBBEE TR ESE -

>H+>
}

S8

R RTE AR

RZTE—TF AEERIR—FZF
AU ZHHTERERE  BRIE#RE
[ 189,994,000 T 2 Fr &7 fF A i &
19,487 oooﬁmz&'ﬁ%uﬂiﬁﬁﬁé )3

16 L ith{F A

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$' 000 HK$’'000
FE&T FET
Cost AR E
At 1 January R—H—H 62,568 62,092
Exchange adjustment ME W, 5 2 2,479 590
Additions NE 3,820 4,485
Transferred from fixed assets HABETEE 2,432 1,965
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHHE AR - (6,564)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 71,299 62,568
Accumulated amortisation REHEE Y
At 1 January m—A—A8 19,070 17,148
Exchange adjustment HE X, 8 & 500 106
Amortisation for the year NG S 1,393 1,816
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 20,963 19,070
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 50,336 43,498
At 1 January ®n—A—H 43,498 44,944

As at both 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, all land use
rights were held outside Hong Kong on leases of between 10 to 50

years.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS Bk B MfaE

17 FIXED ASSETS 17 EEEE
Group
158
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold  Construction- Plant and and Motor
Buildings improvements  in-progress  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
BE-EE
BT HENERE EBIE BEREE H£ERZG HE @t

HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
TiEn TR TEL TiEm T TiEm TEL

Cost KAE
At 1 January 2009 R_EENEF-A—-H 248,052 331,851 145,883 136,462 128,628 39286 1,030,167
Exchange adjustment A 2,881 3,079 850 132 1,157 380 9,671
Additions AE 205 71,097 36,626 4,202 22,463 3,644 138,237
Transfer EE 162,305 - (166,924) - 4619 - -
Transferred to land use rights  E A+ 1E - - (1,965) - - - (1,965)
Disposals it - (63,664) - (3,678) (8,816) (1,096) (77,254)
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-HKBEAF - - (177) - - - (177
At 31 December 2009 R-BENE+-R=1-H 413,443 342,363 14,298 138,310 148,051 42214 1,098,679
Exchange adjustment EHAE 15,886 15,506 1,535 5,359 5,737 1,598 45,621
Additions AE 36,324 145,201 45,608 7,852 32,274 5,709 272,968
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEMB A - 8,794 - - 3,110 339 12,43
Transfer B4 778 4301 (5,247) - 148 - -
Transferred to land use rights & A 31 FF 1 - - 2,432) - - - (2,432)
Disposals e - (57,584) - (5,085) (14,093) (5,168) (81,930)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-EF+-A=1+-H 466,431 458,601 53,762 146,436 175,207 44,692 1,345,149
Accumulated depreciation 23t E
At 1 January 2009 R=ZENE-PA-H 56,415 192,264 - 115,959 64,435 26,359 455,432
Exchange adjustment BHAE 563 1,977 - 1,160 644 265 4,609
Charge for the year TEEHE 12,663 81,497 - 7,084 24,678 5,370 131,292
Disposals e - (42,146) - (3,571) (6,467) (1,064) (53,248)
At 31 December 2009 R-BENE+-R=1-H 69,641 233,592 - 120,632 83,290 30,930 538,085
Exchange adjustment A% 2,770 10,274 - 4,730 3,275 1,129 2178
Acquisition of subsidiaries YN B A - 3,909 - - 1,765 164 5,838
Charge for the year REERE 9,750 92,873 - 6,277 20,438 4318 133,656
Disposals e - (43,416) - (4,929) (12,251) (4,862) (65,458)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-EF+-A=1+-H 82,161 297,232 - 126,710 96,517 31,679 634,299
Net book value EEFE
At 31 December 2010 R=E-2F+-f=1-H 384,270 161,369 53,762 19,726 78,710 13,013 710,850
At 31 December 2009 R-BENE+-R=1-H 343,802 108,771 14,298 17,678 64,761 11,284 560,594
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AR B M5t

18 RMBLARZRE

Company
YN
2010 2009
—2-8F —TTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FHET
Unlisted investments, at cost JELTIRE - KA E 360,635 165,635
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December TEREINNR_Z-ZF+_A=+—HZ
2010: TEMRBAF
Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/
Name operation paid-up capital Interestheld  Principal activities
&8 EMRY/EEHE BRT/BRRAEE fisEs TEER
%
Age International Ltd. © China UsD8,580,000 59.96  Distribution of footwear and accessories
BERREZ(LE)ERARY Gk 8,580,000 NEERERRES
Alldevelop Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100 Investment holding
EBRAES \REE XL SRR RERR
Cheng Lin Shuyang Shoes Co. Ltd. © China US$500,000 100 Processing of footwear
AREXNGERATY e 500,000 T MIEFER
Colossus Asia Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary 59.96  Retail distribution of footwear and
BETHERAT A% shares of HK$ 1 each accessories
100k FREE SENHERER RS
1B ERR
Dafu Footwear Co., Ltd. Hanjiang Putian City China US$3,180,000 90  Manufacture of footwear
BETRIAREEERARY hEl 3,180,000% 0 RERBER
Dasheng Footwear Co., Ltd. Putian City © China US$4,285,700 100 Manufacture of footwear
EBTREIAREXERATY M 4,285,700% T REHBER
Da Shunda Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd.” China RMB10,000,000 59.96  Trading of footwear and accessories
RBEEHEERAFY e 10,000,000 X ¥ BEREERREHN
Daphne Korea Co. Ltd. Korea KRW300,000,000 100 Research and development of
2H 300,000,000% & fashion design
SRS
Daphne Marketing Co., Ltd. Taiwan NTD300,000,000 92 Retail distribution of footwear and
ENESRHERAT =) 300,000,000%7 & # accessories
TENHERERRES
Daxin Footwear Co., Ltd. Putian City © China US$1,500,000 100 Processing of footwear
EBTREIAREXERATY Gl 1,500,000 7T MIBFER
Daxing Shoe Material Co., Ltd. Hanjiang China US$1,499,925 100 Manufacture of footwear
Putian City © e 1,499,925% 1T HESFER

BEMETAREN ERATY
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS Bk B Mf&E

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 RMiEB AR Z2RE (&)

Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/
Name operation paid-up capital Interestheld  Principal activities
£R HMAYL/ EEHY CRT/BRRAFE fEE TEER
%
Despina Fashion (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. © China RMB20,000,000 100 Distribution of apparel and accessories
SHMEE(LE)BRAR HE 20,000,000 A K% 7 8RR A6 R A1
Full Pearl International Limited British Virgin Islands 3,294 shares of 59.96  Investment holding and trading of
EVEBERAR EERIES US$1 each footwear and accessories
3294 BRAEIET REBRREEEREQREN
2R
Fuzhou Da Yue Footwear Co. Ltd. © China US$300,000 100 Processing of footwear
ENABEEERRA G 300,000% 7T MIBBER
Gentlefit Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100 Export trading of footwear,
HFHESARAA Bk HK$ 1 each; 13,055,667 investment and trademarks holding
non-voting deferred HBEMLOES RERBEHE
shares of HK$1 each @
100 BREEIETL
@M ¢ 13,055,667
BREBIETZ
BRERELTRRY
Jiangxi Dachuan Footwear Co., Ltd. © China US$1,400,000 100 Processing of footwear
TEANEEERRAY hE 1,400,000% T NIBBER
Jiangxi Da Qian Footwear Co. Ltd. ® China US5$300,000 100 Processing of footwear
TREATERARRRY e 300,000% 7T NI&EER
Modern City Development Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100 Investment holding
RAZERARAF A HK$1 each; 10,000 REAR

non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each @
100k EREEIETL
LB 10,0008
SREEIETL
BREEETRRY

Pou Yi International Limited Taiwan NTD31,000,000 92 Retail distribution of footwear and
EEERRHERAR 5i& 31,000,000 &% accessories
SENHERER REH

Prime Success (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 5,000,000 shares of 100 Investment holding
EERENES US$0.01 each RERR
5,000,0008 8 R EE
0012 R
Putian Hanjiang Footwear Co., Ltd. @ China US$6,000,000 75 Manufacture of footwear
BRMBIEEERAFY H 6,000,000% 70 RESREER
Shanghai Guang Wei Industry & China US$4,600,000 87.8  Manufacture of footwear
Commerce Co., Ltd. @ H 4,600,000% 7T HEEEER

LERBREZERAR

Shoebox Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 95 Retail sales right holder of footwear,
EEERARAA BE shares of HK$1 each apparel and accessories
10,000 B EE REERER RORENTER
1B ERR
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

18 RMBLR A ZRE (

R B M5t

&)

Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/
Name operation paid-up capital Interest held  Principal activities
2R HMRY/EBHE BRT/BRRAEE Fisks FEEHR
%
Taizhou Rong Wei Shoes Co. Ltd. © China US$1,000,000 100 Processing of footwear
RMREEEERQAY i 1,000,000% 1T MIEHER
Victoria Success Investment Co., Ltd. ®© China U5$30,000,000 100 Distribution of footwear and accessories and
KERE (RE)BRAAY e 30,000,000% T investment holding
PEEEERRENARREER
Victoria Success (Shanghai) Limited © China 1S$23,000,000 100 Manufacture of footwear
KBEE(LB)BRAAY i 23,000,000 0 REEBER
Victoria Success Shoes (Sugian) Co. Ltd. © China RMB3,000,000 100 Processing of footwear
KBEX(RE)BRARY i 3,000,000A R MIEHER
Winson Union Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of 100 Investment holding
KEBEBRARA BE HK$1 each REER
10,0005 BREE1ET
L ERR
Yangzhou Quanwei Industry & China US$700,570 100 Processing of footwear
Commerce Co., Ltd. © HE 700,570 T MIEEER
BNEREEBRARY
ERBEERAAY China RMB250,000,000 95 Distribution of footwear,
i 250,000,000 A R apparel and accessories
PEREED R REH
2REE (RE)BRAAY China RMBS5, 121,975 100 Distribution of footwear,
H 2975 R apparel and accessories
PEHEED R REH
Notes B 5
@ These companies were established in China in the form of equity joint @ ZENAABRPEKIZAERE -
ventures.
® These companies were established in China in the form of wholly foreign- () ZENTARPEKIZ 2INEDE -

(d)

owned enterprises.

Other than investment in Prime Success (BVI) Limited and Full Pearl
International Limited which are held directly by the Company, all subsidiaries
shown above are held indirectly by the Company.

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends, nor
rights to receive notice, nor rights to attend and vote at any general meeting
of the respective companies, nor rights to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

19 AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

20 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

AR B M5

19 ER—EHBRARKRMR-AQ

=

FEY — KB AR EER 28
W78 fE BSKAEIE o

20 R—EBEQRR 2 ES

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FHET
Share of net assets EihEEFE 3,338 3,262
Unlisted investment, at cost FELEMRE B ANE 2,340 2,340
Details of the associated company as at 31 December 2010 are as R-EFE—FTF+-_HA=+—8 BL2q
follows: ZEBWMT
Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of paid-up
Name operation capital Interestheld  Principal activities
&3 EAL EEEY BERAFHE fiERgs TEER
%
Dayong Shoe Material Co., Ltd. China RMBS5,457,000 30 Manufacture of shoe materials
Hanjiang Putian City ("Dayong”)
BETRAIAKEZERART (TXK]) e 5,457,000 A R % HEEEH

A summary of financial information of the associated company is as

BERRZHMBERBENT

follows:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETHhF
HK$’' 000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE 11,316 11,342
Liabilities amE 965 1,070
Revenues WA 12,479 11,772
Profit B 2,061 2,098
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

AR B M5t

21 THESHEE

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-EF _—ZTTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FTET FAET
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3F FTRAIEE - A FEE 33,624 33,624
Unlisted redeemable convertible FE 1= 70 AT B [0 ] R 4B R iR
preferred shares, at fair value AT ER 29,559 -
63,183 33,624

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the following

AHESMEETDRATIEEE :

currencies
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$’'000 HK$’ 000
FExT FAET
RMB AR 33,624 33,624
usD ETT 29,559 -
63,183 33,624
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FExT FAET
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 33,624 33,624
Addition RE 29,559 -
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 63,183 33,624

Notes:

(@  Included in the unlisted equity investments are 30% interests in an equity
joint venture in Mainland China with a carrying value of HK$33,000,000
(2009: HK$33,000,000). Since the Group has no significant influence in the
operational and financial decisions of the investee, the directors consider the
investment as an available-for-sale financial asset. The Group has signed an
agreement with the major shareholder of the investee to secure an annual
payment of HK$3,000,000 for the three years ended 31 December 2011 in lieu
of the profit sharing based on equity interest held.

(b)  As at 31 December 2009, the Group has certain listed securities traded in
Taiwan over-the-counter market with nil carrying value pledged for a bank

loan. The pledge was released during the year.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

AR B M &

22 INVENTORIES 22 78

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-F&E —TTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHBxT FAET
Raw materials R 39,057 31,534
Work-in-progress TR 43,505 23,362
Finished goods BIRK on 1,001,746 834,423
1,084,308 889,319

Inventories are stated net of provisions for impairment of
HK$94,260,000 (2009: HK$99,112,000) as at 31 December 2010.

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES

R-E—FTE+-_A=+—08 HFEDK
K17 S E B 5 94,260,0008 T (-T2 ZF
FLEE £ 99,112,000 7T ) 51 BR ©

23 EZEBWR

Group
rEME
2010 2009
—E-2F —ITTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Trade receivables 2 5 IR 212,151 183,310
Less: Provision for impairment W EWERFOR B R
of receivables (1,721) (2,057)
Trade receivables — net B REWIRR — %R 210,430 181,253

Movement of provision for impairment of trade receivables is as

B HRWERFORERE 2 EBHEIN T

follows:
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-TF —ZTTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’'000
TR FHET
At 1 January w—H—H 2,057 3,721
Write-back of provision for impairment — J& {E 5 & 5 [l (156) (152)
Receivables written off during the FAMEEHES K
year as uncollectible 7 FEUBR =X (180) (1,512)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1,721 2,057
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

AR B M5t

23 B 5 EWRR (&)
R A A 2 H P MR R B D I

LN

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
THERT FHET
0 - 30 days 0£230H 193,902 160,280
31 -60 days 31&260H 11,066 11,001
61 —90 days 61£290H 2,331 6,361
91 - 120 days 912120H 1,677 1,628
121 - 180 days 1212180H 430 1,165
181 — 360 days 181£2360H 895 400
Over 360 days 360H A £ 129 418
210,430 181,253

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of HK$175,479,000
(2009: HK$151,568,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a number of independent customers for whom there was
no relevant history of default. The ageing analysis by past due date of
trade receivables that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

R-ZZE—ZF+-_A=+—B E5K
W B 30175,479,000 T (Z T T H & ¢
151,568,000/ 7T ) I >k 18 B K2 tH 38R (8 °
ZEFREDNERNSZ AU EENT 2B
BEE-EZaHRgoseaiREREZE
SRR RR DT -

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZTF —_ZTTAF
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Not past due 1 > 461 HA 175,479 151,568
1 - 30 days past due mE1 =308 27,136 16,208
31 - 60 days past due #HAI31E60H 3,448 6,301
61 — 90 days past due #HI61290H 1,617 4,151
91 - 120 days past due #mEI91Z=120H 1,376 1,049
121 - 180 days past due BHI121E180H 894 1,158
181 - 360 days past due #H31812360H 421 400
Over 360 days past due #HEI360H M £ 59 418
210,430 181,253
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

R B M5

23 BEZRURA (&)

B RMERERZREENA T EEE

Group

KEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —"ZTTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
RMB AR 145,705 123,341
usD ETT 59,153 56,966
New Taiwan dollar ek 5,489 946
HKD BT 83 -
210,430 181,253

The carrying value of trade receivables approximated its fair value. The
Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 60 days to its
trade customers other than major and long standing customers with
whom specific extended terms will be agreed between the Group and

the relevant counter parties.

24 BANK DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER

THREE MONTHS

The Group's bank deposits were placed with maturity over three
months and less than one year. The deposit was denominated in RMB

at an interest rate of 1.98% (2009: 1.55%) per annum.

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BORBER 2 EREREAFEAEN
HoAEE-MRETEERP 1930260
HEEH MErERRATPZERLER
EEHABAERESRTPE BT

24 FREBEB=EAZRTER

AEBETHERZERAR/EE=HBAE
PR —F - ERIDAAREE - REF

E198E (ZZFZTNF : 1.55F)5 8 -

25 RERREEEY

Group Company
rEE NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-2F —TTHE ZB-BF _—TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THET TET TR FET
Cash at banks and in hand ROTFARFERS 396,622 289,504 353 83,400
Deposits with banks within three GREAE=EANUR
months of maturity ZIRITIER 1,627,667 1,255,347 - 311,293
2,024,289 1,544,851 353 394,693
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

25

26

R B M5t

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 25 B RRE£€ZEEYW (&)
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated Be MR EEM ERENTYEET
in the following currencies: B :
Group Company
rEE RAFE
2010 2009 2010 2009
SE-2F —_TTHNF ZEB-ZBF —_TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FHET FERT FHET
RMB AR 1,744,407 1,061,336 - -
usb = 181,367 474,349 94 394,660
HKD BT 89,809 3,501 259 33
New Taiwan dollar e 7,625 5,397 = -
Korean Won B E 898 250 = -
Others i 183 18 = -
2,024,289 1,544,851 353 394,693
As at 31 December 2010, the weighted average effective interest rate R-ZE—ZFTF+-_A=+—HB A&EEHR=F
of the Group’s bank deposits within three months of maturity was FEIA =@ A AR ZRITFER 2 INEFY
1.31% (2009: 1.07%) per annum. ERFANEEBIZIE(ZZEZNF 1.07
E) -
RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international market. ARSI RBEEREmSEALBE - AR
The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB HE MR A AN Ko E AR B K B 2B S R BB
out of the Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of T8 2 SNE B )RR R H o
exchange control promulgated by the government of the Mainland
China.
TRADE PAYABLES 26 EFEMAIRA

The ageing analysis of trade payables, including trade balances due to
related parties (Note 38(a)) by invoice date, is as follows:

RRE A A BRI (R
BT 2 B 5 45 6 (M3E38(2)) BEER 2 7
wmF :

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-TF —TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000
TET FHET
0 - 30 days 0£230H 315,781 185,629
31 -60 days 31260H 199,075 159,957
61 —-90 days 61290H 28,489 24,059
91 - 120 days 91&120H 15,416 3,789
121 - 180 days 121£2180H 6,238 1,846
181 — 360 days 181£2360H 5,212 3,893
Over 360 days 3608 A £ 7,738 6,144
577,949 385,317
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

27 BANK LOAN

R B M5

27 SR1TER

Group

AEHE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETAF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
F&ET FETT

Bank loan IRITEX
—Secured (Note (b)) — B\ (D)) - 14,567
— Unsecured —m 11,281 -
11,281 14,567
Notes: B EE -

As at both 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group’s bank loan was
denominated in New Taiwan Dollar and repayable within one year and the
carrying value of the bank loan approximated its fair value.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s short-term bank loan was secured
by listed securities classified under available-for-sale financial assets with nil
carrying value.

The weighted average effective interest rate of the bank loan as at 31
December 2010 was 2.8% (2009: 2.8%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2010, the Company has given guarantees to various banks
to secure general banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries amounting
to HK$199,264,000 (2009: HK$186,600,000). As at 31 December 2010 and
31 December 2009, no facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees were
utilised.

28 SHARE CAPITAL

R-F-TER-FFAF+-A=f-A "
AR SRATER Y AR A S AR —
FRME MEERAERATHEERE -

R-PEAF+-A=+—A AKEZE
BRTERARS BATHESHAERE
BATH LTEHF L -

R-ZT—ZE+-_A=+—8 RITEXRZM
HEHEEFEFNEA28E(ZTTHFE 2.8
[E) °

MN-_ZB—ZFE+-A=+—8 KQFA®E
FHf B~ B R — AR ER1T AL E 199,264,000/8
T (ZZZNF : 186,600,000/ 7T) 1 Z K iR
TREER -R-_T—ZTF+-A=+—8
EZZZAF+_A=+—0 HEAQF
ERZBEREA -

28 A

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTER FHET
Authorised: EERRA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,0004% & i% 1 {E0.107% 7T
of HK$0.10 each 2 &R 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
1,637,892,384 ordinary shares 1,637,892,384/% = I EIE0.1078 7T
of HK$0.10 each 2 &R 163,789 163,789

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during
both years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

R B M5t

29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 29 UESEEUARGRER 2
TRANSACTIONS MR 5
Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted and amended on 29 BESAMR -_ZEZ=FRFA_-_+ILBE_
May 2003 and 7 December 2009 respectively, the Company granted TETZNFE+ A LtAEAREBITZER
share options to the executive directors and certain employees during HEETE KRR RFARBPITEENET
the year. The share options are generally valid for a period of ten EERHEBRE - BREASASH—HKET
years and will lapse if the directors and employees leave the Group FoMHEESREERBRETITE AT
before the share options are exercisable. The Group has no legal or BEBRAEE BRENEEB - A&
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in B EErkETETURSERNEE
cash. i M e o
The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of RIEEREAZRE 2 2 PEREETE
all share options to be granted under the share option scheme must Bal PRI RO BE  aETBBHB-
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue TENFEARATEHEIZZEZ=5F1A
on 17 June 2008, the date of approval from shareholders of the ZHNBRMNEREBIEARQFRER
Company after the adoption of the share option scheme on 29 May HEEREREIE B ) AR TR 210% © A&
2003. The Company may grant up to 163,789,238 share options, AEIAI %11 163,789,238 BB #E - HHE R
representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date BEETEIEEREE AARQR B EITRG
of refreshment of the scheme mandate limit. Z10% °
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their MATEZBREZE LENMEFHITE
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BzEHNOT :
2010 2009
—E—=F —ETNF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise share exercise share
price options price options
pilig: hnig
FIHTEE BREHE THTEE BREZE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January “—A—~ - - 8.90 6,700,000
Granted e 6.23 69,625,000 - -
Lapsed e 6.19  (1,500,000) 8.90 (6,700,000)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8H 6.23 68,125,000 - -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2010, the share options outstanding consisted
of 66,025,000 and 2,100,000 share options with exercise prices of
HK$6.19 and HK$7.61 respectively. The exercise periods of the share

options are as follows:

(a)

Daphne International Holdings Limited
ok e |

40,000,000 share options granted to directors on 27 January
2010

15% of the share options will vest on each of the five anniversary
dates of the date of grant and 25% of the share options will vest,
subject to certain performance targets to be determined by the
board of directors of the Company, on the fifth anniversary of
the date of grant.

21,025,000 share options granted to employees on 27 January
2010

20% of the share options will vest on each of the five anniversary

dates of the date of grant.

5,000,000 share options granted to employees on 27 January
2010

12% of the share options will vest on each of the five anniversary
dates of the date of grant and 40% of the share options will vest,
subject to certain performance targets to be determined by the
board of directors of the Company, on the fifth anniversary of
the date of the grant. Provided the employment is terminated
by the Company or its subsidiaries prior to 20 January 2015,
3,000,000 share options will vest fully at the time of termination

of employments.

1,000,000 share options granted to employees on 22 July 2010

One-fifth of the share options will vest on each anniversary with

the first tranche starting on 1 April 2011.

1,100,000 share options granted to employees on 22 July 2010

One-third of the share options will vest on each anniversary with
the first tranche starting on 1 April 2011.
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AR B M &

29 UERGEEURDAER 2
MR 5 (&)

n=

T-TFE+-A=+—B wkH

FZERERBEITEES B A6I19B TR
7.617 7T 2 66,025,00019 }.2,100,00017) &
AEAE - BB Z T ¢

(a)

(b)

40,000,0000 B ER T — T F —
A-t++H®ETES

HELBSEAAEBFAESTRE
15% * HBR25%BHF AR EEEH
FTEEzETRABZERE  RE
THHRAERAERATERE -

21,025,000 lERRER - —ZF —

A-t+tRAXTESE

mEHAREFAEAFAE
20% -

5B

5,000,000 B IR ER =T —ZFF — A
—+ttHERFESR

AEE AR A EEFASFRE
12% * HBRA0%BIHFARBIEEEH
FTEEzETRABZERE  RE
HEHEAERAEBEFARE - WA
RAKEMNBRARR=_ZE—AF—A
BB IEEERA - 3,000,000 #E A%
BRI ERREHRES -

1,000,000 R ER —F—FF LA

“TZHETEE

BREA T ——FHA - HESHE
BFRAEBOANZ—
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted
was measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted.
The weighted average fair value of the share options granted in 2010
was HK$2.29 which was determined using the Binomial Options

Pricing Model with significant inputs into the model as follows:

AR B M5t

29 LIESEEURDAER ZH
MR 5 (&)
BREAFEERER
B 15 L AR T R 2 BR A 2 & R
SRAELEREZ AT EEHE R
TTFEREIEREL AT EENET
BB R229% T HIRER BT AR
RET ZEAZETEHARBOT -

Granted on
RHBH
27 January 22 July
2010 2010

—2-8BF C—2-EF
-A=+tB tA=+=~H

Share price at measurement date REtE2 B2 IRE
Option exercise price BARETTEE
Expected annualised volatility TEEIF EALIR 18
Risk-free rate b ) =
Expected option life T8 HA B % R 4F R
Expected dividend yield TEERZE A X

Expected annualised volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous three to five
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,

exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Subsequent to year-end, the Company granted 2,500,000 share
options on 27 January 2011 at an exercise price of HK$7.84 per share
to certain employees under its share option scheme adopted on 29
May 2003 and amended on 7 December 2009. The share options will
vest on each of the five anniversary dates from the date of grant.

97

HK$5.7887C HK$7.61%8 T
HK$6.197%8 7 HK$7.617% 7T

37.26% 37.26%
2.82% 2.22%

10 years4E 10 years#F
1.31% 2.16%

BHFELRBDERRARARRNEE=ZE
hFEZRERBEMESE - ZRAMAZE
HEHMERERE CRERTU I EE
M TERVRTRAEEZFZETARAE -

REERE  AARRBR_ZTEZT=F1A
ZHNBEBRBER_ZFZTNF+=ALE
BTz ERESE R=2F——F—A
Z++tHmETEE 2,500,000 ik
O TEBATRT.SAE T - EREREN
BRE RSB AEBRFASFERE

Annual Report 2010
—E-TEEY



‘i%ﬁ)ﬁl

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

AR B M5

RERER 2 A

30 RESERVES 30 #&
Group
458
Capital Convertible ~ Warrants~ Share-based
Share ~ redemption ~~ Capital bonds capital cpital  payment Translation  Merger  Statutory  Retained
plemium  resene fesene  resee fesene resHeXr1ve e fesene  resenes  profit Total
WA
R1EE TaREs  ARER  AERYC ‘ ‘
Rl %6 RiBE ArEE ATBE ARBE ENEE SURE  AREE  RUEA )
HKE'000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TR Thr TR TEr TR TEr TR TR TR TR T
(Note (a)) (Note (b))~ (Note/(c))
(Hit(a) (i) (ko)
At 1 January 2009 R-2EnE-A-A 24,505 288 - - - 1792 158571 0 37,669 1455003 1,690,744
Currency transation ifferences EizE - - - - - - 3250 - - - 3%
Profit appropriations RAAE - - - - - - - - B By -
Realisation of translation resene wpon 1 E-EHELE
disposal of a subsidary JERERER - - - - - - [ - - -
Realisation of reserves upon dissolution &1~ BA A
of a sbsidiary JRELR - - - - - - - - (603) 3 (168
Share of an associated company'sresenie B[S -EBEDARE - - - - - - pi - 1 (12) bE|
Profit for the year WWJ - - - - - - - - - IB8s 393838
Dividends - - - - - - - - - (98243 (98243)
Write-back of unclaimed dividends iﬁ @ #EARE - - - - - - - - - 5 5
Transfer upon apse of share options EREXNEER - - - - - 19 - - - Nm -
Isue of convertble bonds huhhEs - - -8 - - - - - -8
At 31 December 2009 u\ “IENETCAZT-A 24,505 2882 - 26,178 - - 185426 N 80,561 1,719,235 2,039,109
Currency translation differences ERZE - - - - - - - - -
Profit appropriatons BHAR - - - - - - - - T -
Share of an associated company's El-REELAGE
Tesere - - - - - - 39 - 13 (13) 3
Profit for the year EnE - - - - - - - - - 55510 595510
Partial acquiiton and disposa YERY ERBAT
of subsidiaries Bk - - (197) - - - - - - - (197)
Dividends k& - - - - - - - - - (180173)  (180173)
Write-back of unclaimed dividends ARAREIRS - - - - - - - - - 2 2
Share-based payment expenses AR /HEWZM 5 - - - - - 5 - - - - 5858
Transfer of warrants from anERaEER
liablity o equity i3 - - - - 36330 - - - - - 38330
At 31 December 2010 HAZE-FETZA=-8 24505 2881 (197) 26178 363310 58589 269,759 3 8338 2131807 2,960,543
Company
ADE
Capital Convertible Warrants Share-based
Share  redemption  Contributed  bonds capital capital  Translation payment Retained
premium feserie suplus fesere feserie feserie risﬁexrve profit Tota
Py
BE TRRER  AkER BEAR
RiEE  BEEE  gAE%  EAER ERRE EXBE  AREE RERA it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Thn ?rﬁ Tk T ThT T Tin Thn T
(lote(e) -~ Mote(e)
) O )
At 1 January 2009 HZEENE-F-A 24,505 288 152,891 - - - 11,792 3,166 195,236
Currency translation differences [E%@ - - - - - 2,003 - - 2,003
Profitfor the year Engil - - - - - - - 9,73 90,738
Dividends ke - - - - - - - (98,243) (98,243)
Write-back of unclaimed dividends BOAENRE - - - - - - - 5 5
Transfer upon [apse of share options EREXTEER - - - - - - (11,79 11792 -
s of convertile bonds EITRRES - - - 26,178 - - - - 2,178
At 31 December 2009 REEENETZAZT-A 24505 288 152,891 26,178 - 2,003 - 9,458 11917
Currency transation ifferences ER%@ - - - - - 3,604 - - 3,604
Profitfor the year WWW - - - - - - - 187,08¢ 187,984
Dividends - - - - - - - (180173) (180,173)
Write-back of unclaimed dvidends E‘@ﬁ%a - - - - - - - 2 2
Share-based payment expenses R BES - - - - - - 58,589 - 58,589
Transfer of warrants from
abityto equiy - - - - B - - X
At 31 December 2010 HE-EETZA=T-A 24,505 2881 152,891 26,178 363,370 5,697 58,589 17211 651,383
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

30 RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal amount of shares
repurchased by the Company in 1999.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company as consideration for the acquisition pursuant to the corporate
reorganisation in 1995.

Statutory reserves

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in Mainland China are required to appropriate
a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to the
statutory reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be utilised to offset
prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the
enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the development of business
operations. When the statutory reserves reach an amount equal to 50% of
the registered capital of the Company’s subsidiaries, further appropriation is
optional.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the
corporate reorganisation in 1995 and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition.

Distributable reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its equity holders of the
Company comprise share premium, contributed surplus, fair value adjustment
of warrant capital reserve, translation reserve, share-based payment reserve
and retained profits. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to equity holders subject to the provisions of its Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the distribution or
payment of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other reserves,
including the share premium account, of the Company.

31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

on 1
RMB
“"Bon

2 June 2009, the Company issued unlisted and unsecured
denominated USD settled convertible bonds due in 2014 (the
ds”) and unlisted warrants to subscribe 100 million new shares of

the Company (the “Warrants”) in the aggregate principal amount of
RMB550,000,000.

The terms of the Bonds and the Warrants are summarised below:

(a)

the Bonds bear interest of 3.125% per annum on the
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds and the interests are
payable by the Company semi-annually in arrears;
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) the Bonds are convertible at the option of the bondholders into
fully paid ordinary shares on or after the issue date of the Bonds
up to 12 June 2014 at a conversion price of HK$3.50 per share,
subject to certain adjustments pursuant to the terms of the
agreement entered with the bondholders;

() 178,510,572 conversion shares will be issued upon full
conversion of the Bonds based on the initial conversion price of
HK$3.50 per share;

(d) the Bonds are redeemable on maturity at a value equal to the
USD equivalent of the aggregate of 100% of the outstanding
RMB principal amount and all amounts accrued thereon;

(e) the exercise price of the Warrants is HK$4.0 per warrant which is
subsequently changed to RMB3.49792 per warrant pursuant to
an amendment deed dated 25 August 2010; and

(f)  the Warrants can be exercised at any time during the period
commencing from the issue date of the Warrants up to 12 June
2014.

At the issuance of the Bonds, a liability component representing the
5-year 3.125% straight debt and an equity component representing
the convertible option of HK$3.50 per share were recognised at fair
value.

At the issuance of the Warrants, a derivative financial instrument was
recognised at fair value.

The fair value of the Bonds and Warrants are separately determined
based on the valuations performed by an independent professional
valuer. The principal issuance proceeds of RMB550,000,000 is then
allocated to the Bonds and the Warrants separately in accordance with
their valuation.

The fair value of the liability component of the Bonds is estimated
using cash flows discounted at an effective interest rate of 7.91%,
while the fair value of the equity component is the residual amount
of the proceeds attributable to the Bonds and is recognised in the
convertible bonds capital reserve. As at 31 December 2010, the
carrying value of the liability component of the Bonds approximated
its fair value.

Transaction costs that relate to the issuance of the Bonds and the
Warrants are allocated to the liability component of the Bonds, the
equity component of the Bonds and the Warrants proportionately
with reference to their respective carrying value at the issue date.

Daphne International Holdings Limited 100
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(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

AR B M5t

31

On 25 August 2010, upon the execution of an amendment deed by

the Company with the warrant holder to change the denomination

of the exercise price of the warrant from HKD to RMB, the derivative

financial instrument qualified with the definition of equity and was

transferred to warrants capital reserve based on the fair value of the
Warrants as at 25 August 2010.

Movements of the liability component and the equity component of

the Bonds and the Warrants are as follows:

TR ESFRIAREE (&)

R-Z—FTF\A=-+AHB  £ARQAHE
&*3%%Aé%{Jﬁ%M%wkm
TEEBZERENABTERAARE
B VTEESRIANGER 2 EEWIZRA
BEFRA—_E—EFN\AFTHAZRTF
BEEREARREEENGEE -

EAzBESD MBI D MR EEE
O ENE

Group and Company

FEBRARTA
Liability Equity
component  component Derivative
of of financial Warrants
convertible  convertible instrument — capital
bonds bonds warrants reserve Total
PTESR
AMEs  FHRRES TA-RK R B
BEED R EB D 1 BARHE et
HK$ 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$"000
TET TET TET FET FET
Principal amount issued EETAEE 518,341 26,948 79,896 - 625,185
Exchange adjustment ME 5, 58 %8 768 - 899 - 1,667
Transaction costs RHEH (14,726) (770) - - (15,496)
Interest expense FEFX 11,242 - - - 11,242
Fair value adjustment NFEEERAE - - 203,466 - 203,466
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNF
+=—RA=+—H 515,625 26,178 284,261 - 826,064
Exchange adjustment e 3 =& 19,155 - 1,781 - 20,936
Interest expense FBHAEZ 21,842 - - - 21,842
Fair value adjustment N EERAR - - 77,328 - 77,328
Transfer from liability HEGEEZER
to equity - - (363,370) 363,370 -
At 31 December 2010 R_Z—TF
+-A=+—A~ 556,622 26,178 - 363,370 946,170
During both years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, Rz E—SF+-_A=+—HE—-ZF

no Bonds were redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled and

no Warrants were exercised.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

32

33

Daphne International Holdings Limited
=Kk

LICENSE FEE PAYABLES

License fee payables were recognised based on a discount rate of
approximately 20% per annum on the minimum guaranteed amount
at the date of inception of the obligation, which was determined by
reference to the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

As at 31 December 2010, all license fees were payable in the second
and third year from the balance sheet date and the carrying value
of the license fee payables approximated its estimated fair value.
As at 31 December 2009, license fees of HK$12,622,000 and
HK$5,228,000 were payable in the second to fifth year and over five
years respectively.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using the applicable tax rates.

The movement in net deferred income tax assets is as follows:

AR B M &

32

33

ST ERER

NS EREERARRERETE AR
RIERERBURRFEL20%MHR - %8
RETNEDEREEZ NEFIHE SR
BE-

RZEB-ZEFE+_A=+—H FEH
HEREEENEEARHE _RE=
FEXfN -MENEFERAEE 2KREE
HEMBFAFEERE R_FTFTLF
T-A=+—8B ERF_E=ZFRFRA
FULIRNZENBHAEREED A
12,622,000/ 7T 125,228,000/ 7T

i SE FT 1§ B
IEAC £ 13 B IR A B A B BT BS 2 4 R0E D
BEE2BEHE -

BIEFMSHEEREZZEHMT

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TR FHET
At 1 January ®—HA—H 38,569 30,216
Exchange adjustment R 1,514 234

Credited to profit and loss FFAE=EE (FFE10)
account (Note 10) 11,134 8,119
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 51,217 38,569
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss to be carried RARARHME THAEZHEBERBRRIL

forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2010,
the Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$129,077,000 (2009:
HK$103,635,000) to be carried forward against future taxable
income, including HK$53,945,000 (2009: HK$35,580,000) and
HK$68,522,000 (2009: HK$61,474,000) that will expire within the
next five years and in five to ten years, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS iR B Bt EE

33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 33 BEFREH (&)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets (prior to offsetting FERELERBEELEE (ER—&F 5
of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are ERE R 7RI EERT) 2B EH T ¢
as follows:
Group
A58
Accelerated
tax Withholding tax on
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation undistributed profits Others Total
BEFEHAE MEREHE ADMEFENH Eff L

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“B-8F CTTNGF SR-%F CTTNF SR-%F “TTNF SR-%F CITAAF
HKS'000  HKS'000 - HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Téx ThAT Tz TET  TEx TEL  TEz AR

At 1 January ®-A-H 2,897 1,555 - - - - 2,897 1,555
Exchange adjustment BRAE 1M 20 - - 6 - 147 20
Charged to profit and loss account & BB &% 1,366 1322 560 - 201 - 2,121 1322
At 31 December Wt-A=1-H 4,404 2,897 560 - 207 - 5,171 2,897

Group

k5E

Decelerated tax

Deferred income tax assets Provisions depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BRfEHEE B BEHERE HEES it Bt

2010 2009 210 2009 2010 2009 00 2009 00 2009
—R-8F CIIAF CR-RF CTIAR SE-RF CRIAR SR-RF CREAF SR-RE CTENE
HKS000 RSO0 | HKS'000  HKSO00 © HKS'000 HKSOO0 - HKS'OD  HKS'000 - HKS'00  HKS000
tén AL | fEn  TEr | TR TEr | TEx  TEr | TER @ TET

At 1 January #-A-H 35,185 1 5839 3,659 - 368 1Y) 623 41,466 3N
Bxchange adjustment Eing 1411 207 179 8 60 2 1 6 1,661 254
Creditedi(charged) to profitand loss account. P A/ (M E) %% 12,361 7857 (1,15) 213 245 (366) (193) (187 13261 9,441
At31 December RTzR=1-8 1897 35185 4866 5839 2305 - 260 W6 416
34 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 34. Hib eSS a s
The balance represented a consideration payable for purchase of a BEEHIEEANKERB AR Z EMNKE
subsidiary during the year and the accrued interests. The consideration RIEETFIE - ERREBIRENERSELE -
payable borne interest of 5% per annum and the balance will not be MEBERTEREERRIT+_@AARK
settled in the next twelve months from the balance sheet date (Note g8 (Hi:E36) o
36).
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35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

R B M5

35

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from

operations

ma

BERER
MM ANEYEEL Y Be T HE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Profit before income tax 5 P15 54 Al &2 A1 850,161 633,543
Amortisation i3] 8,564 3,782
Depreciation e 133,656 131,292
Fair value loss on derivative financial MEeMTIAEATFEEEE
instrument — warrants — R EE 77,328 203,466
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERBAR 2 K& - (1,197)
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary R — RN B ARz WS = (315)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE = 10,606
Loss on disposal of fixed assets LEEEEEBE 12,392 18,876
Interest income LB A (37,151) (6,609)
Finance costs B 7% A AR 44,799 26,704
Share-based payment expense VARR 9 B B0t 2 A 3 2 58,589 -
Net gain on early termination BRI AR RS FE
of a license right (9,493) -
Share of profit of an associated FE (R —fE B R B &
company (618) (630)
Operating cash flows before working EBESEHAIZ
capital changes KERERE 1,138,227 1,019,518
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BE gMm R (103,823) 476,327
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables, & 5 EUWBRZ « EnFEUBRF
other receivables, deposits and Ze RIEMFRIE G M) R
prepayments (106,164) 19,494
Increase in trade payables, other payables & 5 BB « HibEMBER R
and accrued charges FEETE R 228,410 35,505
Cash generated from operations CEELEZRS 1,156,650 1,550,844
36 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 36 WEEF B 2 F
On 20 January 2010, the Group acquired 59.96% equity interest in RZE-—ZTF-—A=Z+H AEEMR—

Full Pearl International Limited (“Full Pearl”) from independent third

parties at a total consideration of HK$195,000,000, comprising cash
paid of HK$180,000,000 and balance payable of HK$15,000,000
which borne interest of 5% per annum to be settled after three years

from the acquisition. Full Pearl and its subsidiaries (together “Full Pearl

Group”) principally engaged in the distribution and retail distribution

of footwear, apparel and accessories under its own brands and

licensed brands in Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong.

Daphne International Holdings Limited
EFARARBBEEEREBERZA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS iR B Bt EE

36 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 36 WHEMIE A T (&)

On 1 August 2010, the Group acquired 32% equity interest in a R-ZE—ZFNA—B XEERAR—Z
subsidiary of Full Pearl and disposed 8% equity interest in a subsidiary R RBEKEEE — BB A F32%
of the Group to the same non-controlling shareholder at a net BAEZ  YAHEHEERER BB A
consideration of HK$182,000. The net loss on the acquisition and Al 2 8% R Az - A {B)FRE /2182,000/%8
disposal of equity interests in respectively subsidiaries of HK$197,000 TC o WRE R EARRM B R AR A S E
was accounted for directly in equity. &7 EI8FEER197,0008 T - ThEBERE
= AR -
The net assets of Full Pearl Group acquired and the relevant goodwiill FIEr e SBFEEREEEZHE
arising are as follows: BN
HK$" 000
FHT
Purchase considerations BEERE
Paid in cash AR @ X AT 180,000
Payable JE T 15,000
195,000
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired FrEr BRFEE 2 AT EE (194,093)
Goodwill EES 907
The carrying amount and fair value of the net identifiable assets of Full FrEE 2 EElr #AFEECREER
Pearl Group acquired are as follows: NFEBERT
Carrying amount Fair value
IREE NEEE
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FHET F&T
Fixed assets B E & E 6,405 6,405
License rights BT 655 36,535
Trademarks [EEE - 71,760
Inventories e 58,519 58,519
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEY 177,242 177,242
Other assets Hith & B 45,625 45,625
Bank loans RITER (29,640) (29,640)
Other liabilities Hitv & & (42,742) (42,742)
Non-controlling interests FE 128 1) 14 4 2 (86,512) (129,611)
Net identifiable assets acquired Fr Wb 2 AT 38 B & B 129,552 194,093
The net cash outflow for acquisition of Full Pearl Group: WEELSEEELE RS REFE
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 180,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired BT RE RIS EEY (177,242)
Net cash outflow for acquisition WEEEZESRLFE 2,758
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

36 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Full Pearl Group contributed turnover and profit of approximately
HK$298,533,000 and HK$8,457,000 respectively to the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010 since acquisition. The Group's
turnover and profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 would not
be materially different if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2010.

There was no contingent consideration arrangement and no
contingent liabilities were identified upon the acquisition.

37 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments for purchase of land use

rights and fixed assets

AR B M5

36 WML A (& )

37

AlkER ERREE-_2—Z2F+_A
z+—a¢¢r£%ﬁ$%l;%ﬁ2%%%ﬁ&
B K| 5 5l /5298,533,000/% 7T 8,457,000
I o **H&ﬁ%%lﬁ#—%—%i—ﬂ—a
EEBE AREBHE-_T—TF+_A
:+—E¢¢Ezgiaﬁxz@ﬂﬁ7@l
B mBEEREE -

R EE I | ARE L HE
HAREME -

i
(a) BETHERRREEEEZE
A

I 48 8 51 £

Group

rEHE
2010 2009
—E-TF —TTNF
HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
FEx FHET
Authorised but not contracted EREERETL 13,246 28,267
Contracted but not provided for HESIEE L 25,679 27,971
38,925 56,238

(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REHERIE
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had future aggregate WZE—FTF+_A=+—0H" ZFE

minimum lease payments in respect of various production plants
and facilities, warehouses, offices and distribution outlets under

EnZHEEREREZE - 2FE B
AE&nﬁﬁEZTT%&%%&%%ﬁSZ

non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REFENRBEERAT
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EETNF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FTEx FHEIT
Not later than one year —FR 686,065 548,816
Later than one year and not —FEERREA
later than five years 703,016 531,293
Later than five years hFi& 30,941 7,893
1,420,022 1,088,002

Payment obligations in respect of operating leases on properties
with rentals vary with gross revenues are not included as future
minimum lease payments.

The Company did not have any material commitments as at 31
December 2010 (2009: nil).

Daphne International Holdings Limited
EFRARBEEREREBER QA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS iR B Bt EE

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38 Mt A X B KRR
BALANCES
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in GARBRE EMIMDABEE RS Mt
these accounts, the Group entered into the following related party G REBRFAGET I HEEIRS

transactions during the year:

(a) Transactions and balances with related companies (a) B AR 22X 5 K iE6k
Transactions Balances at year end
x5 FHEBA 2R
2010 2009 2010 2009

—$-%F -—TThE —B-%F -—TIThA
HK$’000 HK$" 000 HK$’'000 HK$' 000

FTET FHEIT FTEx FHET
Purchases from: MR TR
An associated company /NS 2,218 752 806 352
Investee companies Wig&E QA 2,519 3,360 590 799
Purchases of shoe materials and footwear from the associated mEE AR RERE QA RIRKEEEY
company and investee companies, were conducted in the normal HMEEREMZRS IR AEEBE
course of the Group’s business. The terms of transactions were EBBIRFET - RPBERIIEARE
determined and agreed between the Group and the counter EELZ 5T MEREE  MABEN
parties and all balances due were repayable according to trade TR E SRR -
terms.
(b) Key management personnel compensation (b) EEEE AE 25 B
2010 2009
—E-TF —"ZTTAF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
Salaries and bonuses e M 42,507 21,547
Defined contribution pension costs ERHRFRIKRE KA 321 270
Share-based payment expense AR BERR 2 TR X 44,193 -
87,021 21,817
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LFEMBBR

For the years ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BLEFE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“2-2F C—ITTNF ZTENF ZETEF ZITTRF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR FTiET FTAET T FTAET
Results E4
Turnover EEE 6,623,840  50831,994 5289297 3,853,580 3,093,086
Gross profit EH 3,800,841 3,207,078 2,787,386 1,829,779 1,395,212
Profit before income tax Bk P15 25 A & A 850,161 633,543 666,267 530,018 391,617
Profit for the year attributable to: AT & A EEFRAF - 611,611 400,659 497,177 388,720 295,104
Equity holders of the Company ARRERFEEA 595,510 393,838 492,920 384,383 291,566
Non-controlling interests IR 16,101 6,821 4,257 4,337 3,538
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &R EARZF| (L) 36.36 24.05 30.09 23.47 17.80
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRR S (BI) 12.0 8.0 55 5.0 45
As at 31 December
Rt+t=ZA=+-8

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-2F -—TTAF —TENF —ZTTLF —TTRF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT FET FHET FAET TEL

Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets BEE 5,049,050 3,940,808 2,962,361 2,361,901 1,718,838
Total liabilities Bak 1,741,447 1,698,883 1,071,063 954,719 705,626
Total equity attributable to: AT& L s 3,307,603 2,241,925 1,891,298 1,407,182 1,013,212
Equity holders of the Company ARAIEGFHEBA 3,124,332 2,202,898 1,854,533 1,373,084 981,308
Non-controlling interests FEESIE 183,271 39,027 36,765 34,098 31,904
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